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Mr. CHUA Domingo, Chairman
BRI (2w

I am pleased to present my report to the shareholders.
RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the turnover of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted to HK$146,412,000 (2007:
HK$165,392,000), whereas the gross profit of the Group rose
to HK$89,182,000 (2007: HK$66,287,000) showing an increase
of about 35% as compared with that of the previous year. These
results were principally derived from proceeds of property sale
and rental income of the Group in Mainland China. In addition,
there was other income in the sum of HKS$70,440,000 (2007:
HK$61,255,000), primarily contributed by exchange gain pursuant
to continuous appreciation of renminbi and the guaranteed rental
income of investment properties in Shanghai during the year.

For the year under review, the Group recorded a further increment
in fair value of its investment properties in Mainland China
in an aggregate of HK$37,527,000 (2007: HK$279,616,000),
after the initial recognition of fair value upon reclassification
of certain properties as investment properties in Beijing last
year. Disregarding such increase of fair value and the related
tax implication, the operating profit of the Group before
finance costs and taxation accounted for HK$89,596,000 (2007:
HK$56,954,000), surged by about 57% as compared with that
of the previous year. The profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the Company totalled HK$80,075,000 (2007:
HK$217,479,000) with an earnings per share of HK$0.365 (2007:
HK$0.993).
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 3
Hong Kong cents (2007: 3 Hong Kong cents) per share to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members on 19 December 2008. An interim dividend of 3
Hong Kong cents per share were paid to the shareholders of the
Company during the year which, in aggregate, gives total dividends
for the year of 6 Hong Kong cents per share. Subject to approval
of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the warrants for the final dividend are expected to be
dispatched to those entitled on or about 16 January 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group sustained robust
performance of its core renminbi-based properties, after its strategic
reinforcement of its assets by conversion of certain properties into
investment properties in Mainland China last year. Notwithstanding
the slowdown in the growth rate of the economy, the surging
inflation paralleled with the continuous stringent official tightening
policy in real estate market, the market sentiment of office and
commercial sectors in Shanghai and Beijing, respectively, yet
remained positive with accelerating capital values and rental yield.

The premium-quality offices of the Group known as “Eton Place”
primely located in Pudong, Shanghai were almost fully occupied
with a rising rental level throughout the year under review, mainly
attributable to the setting up of new offices by multinational
corporations, coupled with business expansion of existing corporate
tenants in the city. As such, it brought about a promising major
source of rental income to the Group during the year under review,
underpinned by the guaranteed rental income of RMB60,000,000
as provided by the vendor. In terms of asset value, these
properties appreciated in an aggregate of HK$24,731,000 (2007:
HK$25,047,000) as at 30 June 2008, which has been reflected in the
consolidated income statement of the Company.

In addition, the Group realised an additional gain in fair value of
its shopping centre known as “Uptown Mall” in Chaoyang District,
Beijing in the sum of HK$12,796,000 (2007: HK$208,758,000)
as at 30 June 2008, which has been reflected in the consolidated
income statement of the Company. Driven by overwhelming
momentum of Olympics in Beijing, the retailing ambiance stayed
active that supported leasing for commercial spaces. About 93%
(2007: HK$83%) of leaseable floor area of the mall was took
up as at 30 June 2008, becoming another steady contributor of
rental income to the Group in the year under review. On the sale

Dynamic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007-2008
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

front, the proceeds of property sale generated from the office
apartments and residential units of the Group in Beijing amounted
to HK$65,333,000 (2007: HK$111,865,000) in the year.

During the year under review, the Group endeavored to strive for
enhanced redevelopment value and potential of the site located
in Tung Kok Tau in Shekou, Shenzhen (“TKT”) which included
negotiations with relevant government authorities regarding the
official rezoning, city planning and the location of Shenzhen Metro
nearby.

On the other hand, as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 August 2008, the international arbitral proceedings
involving disputes between the Group and the Chinese joint-venture
partner over the equity interests in Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”, a joint venture company which
is entitled to acquire the land use rights and redevelop a piece of
land with an area of approximately 170,000 square metres located
at TKT) have been heard on 26 March 2008 and an arbitral award
(the “Award”) has been made by China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission on 30 July 2008. According
to the Award, the equity interests of the Group in Zhen Wah
is 49%. But the shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”) entered into between the Group and the Chinese
joint-venture partner in 1996, which stipulates, among others, the
change of the stake of the Group in Zhen Wah to 80% in principle,
is yet legally valid and effective. As a result, Zhen Wah would be
reclassified from a subsidiary to a jointly controlled entity of the
Company in the following financial year. The Directors are of the
view that there is no material adverse impact on the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated net asset value of the Group
pursuant to the Award.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid, and
its financing and treasury policies are managed and controlled at
the corporate level and prudent manner during the year. As at 30
June 2008, the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$1,508,264,000 (2007: HK$1,298,850,000) with
net asset value per share of HK$6.88 (2007: HK$5.93). Total
unsecured and secured bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
about HK$356,300,000 (2007: 388,200,000) as at 30 June 2008,
which were in Hong Kong dollars and repayable within 5 years
on floating rate basis. As at 30 June 2008, the gearing ratio of
the Group was about 12.2% (2007: 22.7%) based on the Group’s
net debt (after deducting bank balances and cash) to its equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. No significant
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations affected the Group in the
year under review, other than appreciation effect of renminbi yuans
on income and properties of the Group, which were all in renminbi
yuans. No financial instruments were used for hedging purpose in
the year.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, sufficient cashflow was generated by
sales proceeds of properties in Beijing as well as rental income of
investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing. As at 30 June 2008,
the Group’s bank balances and cash stood at HK$172,072,000
(2007: HK$93,425,000) denominated primarily in renminbi yuans
and Hong Kong dollars. With sufficient cashflow in the year, the
Group maintained un-utilised credit facilities of HK$16,000,000
(2007: HK$16,000,000) as working capital at floating interest rate
as at 30 June 2008.

Dynamic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007-2008
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Financial Resources and Liquidity (Continued)

The funding requirements for redevelopment of Tung Kok Tau is
intended to be financed by internal resources, bank borrowings and
such other means of financing as the Directors may deem expedient.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2008, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$1,046,441,000 (2007: HK$920,604,000) to
financial institutions as security against general banking facilities
granted to the Group, and also pledged its bank deposits of
HK$16,817,000 (2007: HK$31,469,000) to banks to secure home
loans granted to the home buyers. The Group has given guarantees
in respect of the settlement of home loans provided by banks to the
home buyers of a property project in Beijing. As at 30 June 2008,
the Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$262,440,000 (2007: HK$357,976,000). The Directors of the
Company consider that the fair values of these financial guarantee
contracts at their initial recognition and at the balance sheet dates
are insignificant on the basis of the low loan ratio.

PROSPECTS

Amidst the backdrop of the volatile global market and possibly
recession resultant from financial sub-prime crisis in the United
States, it will lead to a moderating growth of economy in Mainland
China, along with anticipated appreciation of renminbi in a slower
pace as well as adoption of accommodative measures to ease
austerity monetary policy, all stabilising the property market in
Mainland China.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

With improving income level and pursuing quality of life in
Mainland China, demand for quality shopping centres will continue
to be positive in spite of the huge supply of shopping centres in
the coming years in Beijing. The Group will make the appropriate
market positioning and timely adjustment of tenant mix and brand
portfolio to uplift the image of the mall in Beijing.

Despite the recent cooling down of property market in Shenzhen,
the unique redevelopment value of TKT is still beneficial to
the Group. As for the Group’s stake in Zhen Wah, the Group
has sought legal advice and is considering appropriate steps to
safeguard the best interests of the Group, which may or may not
include, but not limited to, the application for the partial withdrawal
of those clauses of the Award which the Company is of the view
that are unjustified; and/or enforce the rights of the Group under the
Shareholders’ Agreement as referred to in the announcement of the
Company dated 15 August 2008.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank my fellow Directors and staff of the Group for
their hard work and commitment, and bankers and shareholders of
the Group for their continued support.

CHUA Domingo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 October 2008
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHUA Domingo, aged 67, is the Chairman of the Company
nominated in 1992. He is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company and a substantial shareholder of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
With over 35 years’ experience in property development and
investment and business management, Mr. CHUA is primarily
responsible for overall strategic leadership and direction of the
Group. Apart from holding interests and Directorships in the group
of Eton Properties (Holdings) Limited (“Eton”), a prominent
developer and holding up-market properties in Hong Kong, he is the
chairman of Air Philippines Corporation and Directors of banking,
hotel, brewery, real estate, brokerage and finance companies in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, the U.S.A. and the Philippines. He is
related to other Executive Directors of the Company being brother-
in-law of Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano
Chua and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; and uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr.
Khao and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, aged 59, is Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company and was appointed in
2006. He is responsible for overall performance of the Group. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has over 22 years of experience in property development and
investment, banking and general management. Over the years, he
held senior positions as the chief executive officers of Eton in Hong
Kong and Oceanic Bank, a state chartered commercial bank in San
Francisco and vice chairman of Allied Banking Corporation (Hong
Kong) Limited, a restricted licensed bank in Hong Kong. He holds
a bachelor degree in applied science, a master degree in business
administration and an honorary doctorate in humane letters. He is
related to other Executive Directors of the Company being brother-
in-law of Mr. CHUA Domingo and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming;
brother of Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua; and uncle of Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua, aged 68, is an Executive
Director of the Company and was appointed in 1997. He is in
charge of business development, investment and management
of the Group. He has about 46 years of experience in business
management and treasury. Apart from holding certain Directorships
in the group of Eton, he is the vice chairman and treasurer of
Philippine Airlines, and holds other Directorships and treasury
positions in various companies in the Philippines engaging the
businesses of banking, hotel, brewery, real estate and industrial
plants. And he holds a bachelor degree in commerce. He is related
to other Executive Directors of the Company being a brother of Dr.
CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, the brother-in-law of Mr. CHUA Domingo
and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; and uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed in 1997. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He has
about 17 years of experience in business management. And he is
currently a Director of Philippine Airlines as well as the president
and chief executive officer of an airline support and logistics
company in the Philippines. He has held senior executive positions
in various companies including tobacco and rhum industries in
the Philippines. He was awarded master degree under executive
master of business and administration program (EMBA) jointly
by Northwestern University in the United States and Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology as well as holding a bachelor
degree in civil engineering. He is related to other Executive
Directors of the Company being nephew of Mr. CHUA Domingo,
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua
and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; and brother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, aged 64, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed in 1999. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He
possesses about 38 years of experience in real estate, brewery and
services industry. He has been an Executive Director of Kenmore
Pty., Ltd., one of the largest group of manufacturing, real estate
and service companies in Papua New Guinea since 1976, and is
also senior executives of Eton and group of brewery companies in
Mainland China. He holds a bachelor degree in agricultural and
water conservancy. He is related to other Executive Directors of the
Company being brother-in-law of Mr. CHUA Domingo, Dr. CHAN
Wing Kit, Frank and Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua; and uncle
of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 49, is an Executive Director
of the Company and was appointed in 2006. He is in charge
of business development, investment and management of the
Group. He has over 26 years of experience in manufacturing,
property development and investment. He currently holds a senior
executive position in Eton. He also serves as Director in real estate,
manufacturing and logistics companies with businesses in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and the Philippines. And he is an Independent
Non-executive Director of United Pacific Industries Limited. He
holds a bachelor degree in economics. He is married to the niece
of four other Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr.
CHUA Domingo, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TANENGLIAN
Mariano Chua and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming; and brother-in-law of
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 50, is an Executive Director of
the Company and was appointed on 17 December 2007. He is also
the financial controller of the Group. He holds a master degree in
business administration and has over 25 years of solid experience
in the accounting and finance field in Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the Group in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm and held
various senior accounting positions in property companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. WONG Sai Tat, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company and was appointed on 2 January 2008. He is also the
general manager of China operations and the qualified accountant
of the Group. He joined the Group in 1990. He is an associate
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
obtained a master degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has 21 years of experience
in the accounting field and development projects of real estate in
Mainland China.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 57, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and was appointed in
1994. He is also Chairman of Audit Committee and a member
of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a veteran in
the jewellery business in which he has over 36 years of working
experience. He is managing a number of companies engaged in
jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling and exports activities in
Hong Kong, Singapore and Japan.

RAEMARAT —RBLE R )EEER




Profile of Management (Continued)
EMNEEN )

()
W JE AT S ()

SY Robin %% > BIE 735 > R —JuLil
FHRELEAEAANT B LIFERITES -
INEANTFEZE B G RHWE 5 &l
B oo B4 JE A — WA S S S T Asia
Shipping Corporation < ## » JRA— &
Bili - S A FF B T RIABAT = A T Ok
oo BEAF S T - BT R

SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol &1: » Bi4E
S35k i R L ERAT B A A L
FEHATEE - WIRBANFIFHE B G ]
W B e o DR R A
B M B HUEE AN o RHEA 43148
1T~ o SR HE A ) RS 48 8 o BLIREARE
B ERAT (B us) A PR Al 2 B JE AT
$ o

A BLAH

WEBLL > BIFA25 > BAEEN AR
F oo BEREA LR A A LR - T R
AHEAGERE R - AT E A
B REE LA R BAE 20 F4M03E
TG EE M R REE 2R K
UL I AA G -

B/ PO - B SSpt  MASEEIAH A
B MEFFLFEMBALEA > —H
e S 5 e i 2R AT 36 > R T S
B L AR AR EE AR - 5%
A AT I8 21 4F 5 A g 5 N SE A L A
B o

15

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. SY Robin, aged 73, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company and was appointed in 1994. He is also members of
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is the president of Asia Shipping Corporation, a shipowner
engaged in shipping business in the Philippines. He is also a lawyer
and holds senior executive positions in some companies engaged in
shipbuilding and repairing business as well as heavy construction
equipment trading field in the Philippines.

Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol, aged 53, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and was appointed in
2007. She is also member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. She holds bachelor degrees in law and
commerce and is a certified public accountant. She has about 31
years of experience in banking, senior management and consultancy
services. Currently, she serves as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly, aged 42, is the company secretary of
the Group. She holds a master degree in business administration
and is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She is also an associate of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has more than 20 years of
experience in corporate governance, accounting, finance and legal
affairs in publicly listed companies in Hong Kong. She joined the
Group in 1994.

Mr. YANG Xiao Ping, aged 55, is the chief project manager of
the Group. Prior to joining the Company in 2007, Mr. Yang was
engaged in the construction industry of real estate, and was senior
management staff of listed companies engaged in development of
real estate. Mr. Yang possesses over 21 years’ experience in real
estate construction and business management.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and
development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 28.

On 17 January 2008, a final dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per
share was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2007.

An interim dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share amounting
to HK$6,573,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company
during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$6,573,000 payable to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 19
December 2008 which, in aggregate, will give a total of dividends
for the year ended 30 June 2008 of 6 Hong Kong cents per share.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in fair value of investment properties which has
been credited to the consolidated income statement, amounted to
HK$37,527,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Details of the movements in the properties held for development
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$22,062,000 as at 30 June 2008.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHUA Domingo, Chairman

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan (appointed on 17 December 2007)

Mr. WONG Sai Tat (appointed on 2 January 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. SY Robin
Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Messrs. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
and PASCUAL Ramon Sy will retire by rotation, Messrs. CHIU
Siu Hung, Allan and WONG Sai Tat will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2008, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors and their associates in the shares of the Company (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be maintained under Section 352
of the SFO were as follows:

P AT R (A7)
Number of issued ordinary
shares held (long position)

AR FCHEAT

VN £ il £ JBe AT B B

Percentage of

the issued

Personal Corporate share capital

Name of Director interests interests  of the Company
Mr. CHUA Domingo (note) 4,000,000 89,321,279 42.59%
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 80,000 - 0.04%

Note: The corporate interests of Mr. CHUA Domingo were held through Dynamic
Development Corporation. Dynamic Development Corporation is wholly-
owned by Carnation Investments Inc. of which Mr. CHUA Domingo is the sole

shareholder and Director.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO as at 30 June 2008; or would require,
pursuant to Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
the Listed Companies, to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors of the Company, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. CHUA Domingo, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr.
TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming, Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. WONG Sai Tat held interests and/
or directorship in companies engaged in the businesses of property
investment and development in Hong Kong and/or the Mainland
China.

As the Board is independent from the boards of the said companies,

the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of,
and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions below and in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had material interests, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 24 February
2006, the Group acquired a property situated in Shanghai known
as Eton Place with 182 office units and a gross floor area of
approximately 30,188 square metres (the “Property”) after
approved by independent shareholders of the Company on 14
March 2006. Eton Properties Group Limited as vendor and Eton
Properties Limited as guarantor, two connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules in which Mr. CHUA Domingo, the controlling
shareholder and Chairman of the Company together with his
associates is indirectly beneficially interested) have provided
a gross rental guarantee yield of 8% per annum in the amount
of RMB60,000,000 for three years from date of delivery of the
Property, which was completed on 30 September 2006. And the
amount paid to the Group pursuant thereto was HK$12,472,000 in
the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a deed of mutual covenant (“DMC”) in respect of Eton
Place, HHIEY3EHE B ( Eif) FFR/A ] (Eton Property Management
(Shanghai) Company Limited) (the “Property Manager”), being an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor acts as the property
manager to manage Eton Place (including the Property). Property
management fees of RMB28 per square meter per month are
payable by the Group to the Property Manager on the same terms
binding on other owners of other parts of Eton Place calculated
in accordance with the DMC. The engagement of the Property
Manager as set out in the relevant property management contract
will be for a term of two years commencing from 1 October 2006 to
30 September 2008. Details of the above transactions are disclosed
in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated 24 February 2006.

These constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules, and the cap is the maximum amount of
property management fees payable by the Group to the Property
Manager pursuant to the DMC in the sum of HK$12,000,000 for
each of the financial years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 and in the
sum of HK$3,000,000 for the financial year ending 30 June 2009,
which have been approved by independent shareholders of the
Company on 13 March 2006.

Pursuant to rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors
of the Company engaged the auditors of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The auditors have reported
their factual findings on these procedures to the Board of Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Pursuant to rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company upon normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the sharcholders
of the Company as a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2008, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders (other than a Director of the Company) in
the shares of the Company as recorded in the register as required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Pids C 84T AAFCH#T

WBYH () JBeACT 2} e
Number of issued  Percentage of the
ordinary shares held issued share capital

Name of substantial shareholder (long position) of the Company
Plus Holdings Limited
(provisional liquidators appointed) (note) 13,152,000 6%

Note: The interests of Plus Holdings Limited were held through Telecom Plus

Investment Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary.

Other than as disclosed above and the interests disclosed in the
Directors’ interests in shares in respect of Mr. CHUA Domingo,
the Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
position and underlying shares of the Company as required to be
recorded in the register under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June
2008.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2008, the Group had below 100 employees in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China at prevailing market remuneration
with employee benefits such as medical insurance, provident fund
schemes and share options scheme.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit as,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate was less than 25% of
the total turnover of the Group and the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate was
less than 25% of the total purchases of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 30 June 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June
2008 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
corporate governance report on pages 92 to 100.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN VWing Kit, Frank
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 17 October 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 28 to 87,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 June 2008 and
of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

b@@;ﬂ%iud&_ CCDL\MMW

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 October 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

TR E S

WECET/EANH =1+ H ILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Kt “RENE CERLE
Notes 2008 2007
BWTIL T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
e Turnover 7 146,412 165,392
P A Cost of sales (57,230) (99,105)
EH Gross profit 89,182 66,287
HAt g A Other income 8 70,440 61,255
EXLE R Y& d-L/ES Revaluation surplus/increase in fair
ANFEZ B value of investment properties 16 37,527 279,616
T A Administrative expenses (70,026) (70,588)
il A Finance costs 9 (15,862) (18,151)
IR B Al ¥ A Profit before taxation 10 111,261 318,419
BiIE Taxation 12 (31,089) (95,922)
A JiE Vi ] Profit for the year 80,172 222,497
JREAN 5 A1) Attributable to:
AN F ERERE A A Equity holders of the Company 80,075 217,479
DR R A Minority interests 97 5,018
80,172 222,497
i35 Dividends 13 13,146 13,146
B B FE AR B R Basic earnings per share
(W ) (Hong Kong cents) 14 36.5 99.3
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HOEREAER

WEEENEAH=1H
At 30 June 2008

it “RBAE CEELE
Notes 2008 2007
BT T T
HK$’000 HKS$000

FREBEE Non-current Assets
W - W Rk At Property, plant and equipment 15 14,672 13,431
VG- LY/E Investment properties 16 1,603,217 1,410,772
G2 UES Properties held for development 17 255,712 235,874
HoAth SRR Other receivables 20 6,048 28,214
1,879,649 1,688,291
REEE Current Assets
FrEWE Properties held for sale 18 79,275 113,737
YR Loan receivables 19 - 2,954
B 5y B A REM R K Trade and other receivables 20 50,262 74,851
DB R R K Amounts due from minority
shareholders 20 6,679 5,945
JREHR AL IH Tax recoverable - 83
AT — S Bank deposits — pledged 31 16,817 31,469
SRAT AL R I 4 Bank balances and cash 20 172,072 93,425
325,105 322,464
REBEE Current Liabilities
& T R oAt A IR Trade and other payables 21 79,083 84,894
B TE S i 4 Pre-sale deposits received 22 7,116 8,927
R —[HA BRI 2 W 2 5)08 Amount due to a related company
— JHA — A N — due within one year 23 9,878 9,811
JREASH B I Tax payable 81,061 67,576
SRAT R — A — A N AR Bank loans — due within one year 24 40,300 36,900
217,438 208,108
RENEERE Net Current Assets 107,667 114,356
EEABERRBEE Total Assets less Current Liabilities 1,987,316 1,802,647
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
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At 30 June 2008

i SREAE EELE
Notes 2008 2007
BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$’000
EXRHEE Capital and Reserves
e A Share capital 25 219,104 219,104
it Reserves 1,289,160 1,079,746
AR REFEAELER Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,508,264 1,298,850
DY R ERERE Minority interests 47,255 43,572
R Total Equity 1,555,519 1,342,422
FREEE Non-current Liabilities
SRATRE K — R — FE AR R Bank loans — due after one year 24 316,000 351,300
R — A1 R G > B 2 KO Amount due to a related company
—HR—F R ER — due after one year 23 9,407 18,364
AR SE R JH £ Deferred tax liabilities 26 106,390 90,561
431,797 460,225
1,987,316 1,802,647

5528 & 87 ET# 2 45 A MBSIRIEE R =&
F)AE+H L H S R R
El > Sl R P AR A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 28 to 87 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17
October 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

-%‘

CHUA Domingo
DIRECTOR

HH
L 1]

HH
Bk A

CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A o R 2 S B o

FAEARH =+ H IERE

BHE-F

For the year ended 30 June 2008

ARARRESH AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
¥k L2 |
Bk RSB GRIGE B LRE Rl GRRE REEA & R &
Capital
Share  Share  Special redemption Translation Statutory ~ Other  Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total ~ interests Total
BETL BETT BRI OBETC BETL BT OBETL OBETL BETC BRI BET
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
() Wiz) (W)
(note a) (note )~ (note ¢)
REEBNELA-H At 1 July 2006 29,104 426,608 35018 1644 13349 0 9451 AT 1026627 34865 1,061,492
ERMERTEIZES Exchange differences arising on
EEZBHER translation recognised directly
in equity - - - - 6789 - - - 6789 3689 TLST9
RER A Profit for the year - - - - - - - NTAY O ATA 5018 20497
BEERDSRARR Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - 0789 - - 27479 285369 8,707 294,076
BekE Cash dividends - - - = - - - (1346) (13,146 - (13,146)
RERFLERAZTH At 30 June 2007 29,104 426,608 55018 1644 81,239 0 92451 422065 1298850 43572 1342422
ERIMERTEIES Exchange differences arising on
EEZBEER translation recognised dircctly
in equity - - - - 140485 - - - 142485 4661 147,146
AERH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 8005 80075 9 8N
KEERAZBIARRL Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - 142485 - - 80075 222,560 4758 21318
Baha Cash dividends . . . : . . oM (BMG (0 (42
REZEMEANZHH At 30 June 2008 19,104 426,608 55,018 164 2374 T 451 488994 1508264 47255 1555519
Mt Notes:
() A 52 [ 2 5 I fok 4 7 4 TR S i 4 91 = 401 ey T il (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the
0 A O 2 ) R IREAS TR U A - — ARl aggregate amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve
T AR B Ui R 2 A (L B AR A ) M G I T B AT and retained profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of
B T (BT 2 2 R A o the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group
reorganisation.
() B P58 i B A5 5 ot T 420 8 P A A8 ) (b)  The statutory reserves transferred from retained profits are required by the
A b R SRR ([ v B )) BB 2 W) 2 A B relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to
W 1249 R LKA o the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
() A B 22 35 A fkf 5 7 W1 A B AR 2 ) R HE R A (c) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity

ANz B35 IR BREZFFANEAA=THIE
LR B AT R A AR A P (i B
Wi S T i 2 ) 9 e 2 T E B S
SR EARZ T TEE I 2 22T A o
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holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the

subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2006.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

22 S\ N =X
maBlaRER
BEEF)EANA=THILFEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

“ERRNE SRR LE
2008 2007
WL W TT
HKS$’000 HK3$’000
REEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
AL A2 | Profit before taxation 111,261 318,419
ik Adjustments for:
FLE YA Interest income (3,863) (3,519)
BB B Revaluation surplus/increase in
I PAE S fair value of investment properties (37,527) (279,616)
e Depreciation 1,808 1,846
B - R Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
B FAUE) plant and equipment 41 (110)
JREW IR P iERR 2 Impairment loss recognised in
WE K TE respect of receivables 5,758 15,693
1 ] B U R AR 2 (B s 4R Reversal of impairment loss in
respect of receivables (1,318) -
TE AR B 30 I 2 B 6 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 3,436 3,193
Pl A Finance costs 15,862 18,151
oA EU IR 2 Fair value adjustment
OB R in respect of other receivables 3,151 1,592
I 58 Ui 7 Exchange gain (37,694) (18,666)
L A S i R Operating cash flows before movements
B4 i in working capital 60,915 56,983
FrEY D Decrease in properties held for sale 44,220 75,966
B 5 e At U IR X Decrease (increase) in trade and
W (H8m) other receivables 49,850 (71,292)
B 5y K A IEAT B K (Decrease) increase in trade and
(3D #6m other payables (14,183) 1,035
BN s e Decrease in pre-sale deposits received (2,626) (27,555)
KB ERE 2 Bla Cash generated from operations 138,176 35,137
A s T AR L Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (7,104) (135)
EL AT ¥ LS I A5 B Profits tax outside Hong Kong paid (12,095) (6,081)
o H AR B2 Bl T NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 118,977 28,921
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

42 AT = I T
HEEBHESRER (8
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

SEEMNE CETLE

2008 2007
BWTL BT
HK$’000 HK3$’000
BB INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CAT i ) 2 25 2 Balance of purchase consideration of
RABBR 3K property interest paid - (388,568)
SRATHEAF A B (3G Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits 17,072 (13,716)
AT D BURR KA Advances to minority shareholders (85) (323)
UNCRYE T SIS i Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,688) (724)
i 7 A B AT R 3K Loan receivables repaid 2,813 6,035
LY AE Interest received 2,165 1,618
BV - B TR Proceeds from disposal of property,
A plant and equipment 41 281

KA ) BRFHHZ
BLawH

VG )
W SRAT B R IR
IR SRAT B EIH

1 75 X — A7 B B 2 ) 2 R

EATAE
2 ATALE

HIR) S H B B 2
Bl & W

Bl B B3 (W)

i
SERZ B BB S

HhiE v 4 5% B 2 5 B

SRR Z B RIS
PASRAT &5 R B B R0R

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of amount due to a related company
Dividends paid

Interest paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

20,318 (395,397)

21,000 417,000
(52,900) (28,800)
(9,916) -
(14,221) (13,146)
(14,836) (16,821)
(70,873) 358,233
68,422 (8,243)
93,425 97,736
10,225 3,932
172,072 93,425
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 1 B 5 B T PR

WECET/EANH =1+ H ILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

1. Bk 1.

Ay w9 AE B R R AL 2 W
ARAT > HIRARTEE B G35 B
ARAF (TR ]) £ o A2 w5k
I e e 2 = B SE M B L RS A A
P [ AR RECEEER] A -

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate and Investor Information” in
the annual report.

ANE Ry R ER AT > HER
Wi Ja 2 B 2 S5 T ) S 1 S R

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are property investment
and development.

ARFZNRE R/ NRWE - ARF
%$@%‘F§£J:Fﬁfm¥ﬁ o RS W
RE G228 SEia B RE
U251 o

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars as the Directors of the Company consider that Hong
Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation currency in
view of its place of listing.

2. HERBaT B s & s B s 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
5 HE | HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

RAEBER - A HE WA & e
atfl2s g (1 o ol i 2 €1 1) P o
Z RIUHRTHER ~ BT Sk B (Wi

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendment and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

%ﬁ’ﬁ%#%ﬁﬁ“l » B SF M FEAS £ Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
()i te e S o o o = Rl = W e D i effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 July 2007.
AEREARL o
Fris e iyl BRI R HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures
5158 (BRTA)
T s B ST H : PE HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HERI 7 9%
s (B PRI T s s 5 % HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
mEEZAY) — WE Impairment
RS 1095

s (BRIP4 v HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury

mRZET) — A5 258 « 48 Share Transactions
PR 119 5] K e A B0
L5

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or

R AN W% S T 7 v T A R AR A
IS0 7 0 ) A R e 51 3
BB DU B R 2 - BRI

prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

AN JE 2y R L J ARt R 2 o
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Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B BB MR IR BT (40)
BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

2. WG P A e B T W A
HHER )

A 45 28 W) 1 T A v wt YR R AR 1
SE (ERTA) B 7 s W 5 i o B R 2R 7
SRR S I BERRRLAE o A DAFE AR BEAR B2
s G T A 32 SR 25 2 T B R
E A M B - T AR ¢ A s ot 5
SE (ERTA) B 7 s W 5 i 5 ME R 2R 7
SRARE I B LB R AR AR
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A 45 P MG 4 L BR AT 510 2 B R 1
KA AT RARERTHER ~ AT 5L
g o

B G EAE 15E
(B %)
FiEGRHENS 23 5
U HES)
FiEGRHENS 275
UHES)
FiEGRHEN 325
R 1% (BiTA)

BBt B 25
fRE A
G BB R

keGSR LARER
W2 AL

B ETHER 3958
T U T A
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B05% (BT A)
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SHEETHNES
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B3 i
3% (BT A
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wENR

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under the
requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant
comparative information based on the requirements of HKAS
1(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first
time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs!

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of
Financial Assets®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments!

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Fis (A HaRSR &P B
BZEE) — 2R
H134

B (BB BB asHERE 1998 -
BZAE) — 2R FERAEEZR
H14%5 il Rk EEER K

EAiE

Fib (ABHHERER  FREREhR
BZE®) — 2B
H154%

B (BB BR 2 SN e

BZAE) — 2k
165

35

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HKAS 19-The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and
their Interaction®

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate!

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR AT RRIE M 5 (4

BWE FET/EANA =T HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

3 Effective from 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control, which will be accounted for as equity transactions.
HKAS 23 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
borrowing costs relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these standards, amendments or
interpretations and the Directors of the Company so far
concluded that the application of these standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment
properties, which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

When the intention of the properties changes from being held
for sales to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, there
would be a transfer from properties under development or
completed properties for sales to investment properties. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the Group completes the
construction or development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value of the property
at the completion date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in
leasehold land and development costs including attributable
borrowing costs capitalised and capitalisation is suspended
during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets or liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from minority
shareholders, bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan
receivables and trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables
and deteriorated value in collateral assets, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amounts of the
allowance accounts are recognised in profit or loss. When loan
receivables and trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
accounts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a related company and bank loans) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

RAEMARAT —RBLE R )E R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao BB MR VALY 5 (o

BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

3.

B )

¥ 5 7R i Z HE R K

B 7 R < BEWOIR S AR S i IR
AR B S W S L 2 A R o

HEL 2 988 ORI Ji ) R IRy T A2 1~ (B Tl
W BB A5 A LA -FERH & -
AEL 4 988 O B 2 (B 228 B8l A 48 2 AR R
o

CLEG SRR E VS E S -8 K- Sk ]
REM RS AR - HLAHH 252 i 2 i T e
W2t W

Wik 5 5 T — A SE B AR R v BT 4 Ak 1Y
W e s 1 Wi e Wi AR (4R
Prn BAHB & BLIH) B9 FERHE -
V/ES N

5 W SIS O W28 & A W) SE B
F == 2 g S (o] e T O I

G| T A A A 2 IR R

o HERAZIWAT

o UWMECOHMBHELSAKNMNTH
s K

o MRIEHEEMC WIRE £ 50 B
B Wi Bk 2 i e AR g o

FEAF & LAl B A R E A B R D7 IR
E & S M E R B B B R B A
B GRBH) ALK

47

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Receivable for vendor’s undertakings

Receivable for vendor’s undertakings includes the rental
guarantee and reimbursements of letting commissions and
property management fees.

The rental guarantee is recognised at fair value upon initial
recognition and subsequently measured at fair value at
each balance sheet date. Changes in fair value of the rental
guarantee are dealt with in the profit or loss.

Reimbursements of letting commissions and property
management fees are recognised when the right to receive the
reimbursement can be established.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred. This takes place when all of the
following conditions are met:

. the execution of the sale and purchase agreement;

. the properties have been delivered to the purchasers
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement; and

. the receipt of the deposits pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement or collectibility of related receivables
is probable.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to all
the above conditions being met are included in current or non-
current liabilities as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Others

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Properties held for development

Properties held for development represents prepaid lease
payments of land use rights, direct reclamation costs and
other development costs including attributable borrowing
costs under development capitalised. Capitalisation of other
development costs are suspended during the periods in which
active development is interrupted (the “Extended Periods”).
Properties held for development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The prepaid lease payments in
relation to the properties held for development are initially
recognised at cost and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Such amortisation is capitalised when the
properties are under development and charged to consolidated
income statement during the Extended Periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value using the
straight line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowance of doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of loan receivables, trade and
other receivables.

Allowances are applied to loan receivables, trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification of
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual cash flows relating to loan receivables and
trade and other receivables are different from the previous
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
loan receivables, trade and other receivables and doubtful
debts expenses.
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5. WML BE 4T BL 5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
A A [ 45 3 L AR DA R PR AN 42 [ i The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
B e A DA R AR A O N I ] Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
R 475 18 %2 B A s BEL A A 2 ] A AR 1 °F maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
i 77 ) 4 A IR S B 5 [ R o AR R of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
o] o R S PR 2 AT RN B o remains unchanged from prior year.
I A ] 2 B AN R B (AL FE TE B The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
FEEE 24 TH NP EE M ERATIE ) - BlE includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 24, net of cash and
I8 4 S BV R A s m IR R A cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of
MEAGHE 25 (GLEE B 34T IR AS R it o the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
AR\ ) H T E AR B AR o RS The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
WAEB TAEZ — 3/ » AN A EEHF periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
REAF B TR - 7 A A o AR Company review annual budgets taking into account of the
ERETEE > EREEBEANA LK provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
EASE R 2 A0 B R > Sl A2 R B A% Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
B AT Ay ~ AT S s (] with each class of capital and balance its overall capital
A By > DAy A S A e o structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
6. TWTH 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
. 4T e a. Categories of financial instruments
“RENE CERLAE
2008 2007
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
A e Financial assets
BT R I SR Receivable for vendor’s
undertakings 7,725 47,962
DA 6 1A 3L 2 B % TR A R Loans and receivables
(LGB 4 KB 4 %5 (H) at amortised cost
(including cash and
cash equivalents) 242,185 185,342
LB Financial liabilities
DU A R 2 B Liabilities at amortised cost 397,684 458,198
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6. £RWTH &) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from minority shareholders, bank deposits and balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amount due to
a related company and bank loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. These risks include market risk (including interest
rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures.

i)  Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rate.

Interest rate risk analysis

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate bank loans and short-
term bank deposits and balances amounting to
HK$356,300,000 (2007: HK$388,200,000) and
HK$188,889,000 (2007: HK$124,894,000),
respectively. The variable-rate bank loans with
original maturity instalments ranging from one
to three years. Increase in interest rates would
increase interest expenses. The Group currently
does not have interest rate hedging policy, however,
management monitors interest rate exposure on
dynamic basis and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

ezt A SRS
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6. &WITH #) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
<. Ak BE AR I H B B BUR (4) b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Continued)
i) ik () i) Market risk (Continued)
T3 i 1 1R Interest rate sensitivity

T B UK RE AT T AR SR A &
BOH AR TR EE o
A BH R ] 2R ERA T RN 4R
IR SR > i B HT
WS R &5 8 H 3% T H ¥
RERHEFE—HPRME
B o ffi 1003 Es ETFE R
PR RN G S R A
A RS E) -

A HoAth S A R N 1 A
AT 100 3 B0/ FEAK
A4 I = BT )\AEN
H =+ B 1k 4 B % A € i
A /880 1,210,000 G
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5 1,843,000 7C) © f8 £ E
7 74 4 9 gl L 37 ) ) R 4
T BN SRAT A7 ok e HL &t
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The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet
date. For variable-rate bank loans and bank deposits
and balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of instruments outstanding at the balance
sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
as it represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2008
would decrease/increase by HK$1,210,000 (2007:
decrease/increase by HK$1,843,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s net exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and bank
deposits and balances.

B Currency risk

AL AT T LN R A The Group undertakes certain transactions
LGy o R RE 2R I denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures
TR o A £ [ BRI VR A to exchange rate fluctuation arise. The Group

P AR 7 AR G 4 3 i B
JEUBg o R 9 4 1) B %
SIS AR > AN
JEBgE > 3l 75 A R
BRAME R -
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currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The
management manages its foreign currency risk
by closely watching the movement of the foreign
currency rate and consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. TWTH %) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
<. Ak BE AR I H B K BUR (4) b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Continued)
i) BB (i) i) Market risk (Continued)
AR i (A Currency risk (Continued)
P LI o =l < The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
KRB AER RS H 2R currency denominated monetary assets and
MEW R : monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
SRRNE CEELE
2008 2007
BT HEWET T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
¥ Assets
W (Tl D) Hong Kong dollars
(“HKS$”) 3,998 1,614
ESA(E <-4 United States dollars
(“US$”) 26,488 9,979
etk ([ 9emf ]) Great Britain pound
(“GBP”) 2,651 -
15 Liabilities
i HKS 377,601 421,025
S i IS T Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

PRI 41 BEE e R 2 5 B T i A
Y > i A A G P Y i A B

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit or loss in response to

| PN IR T reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
AL E R 2 A0 B s S i rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
Si A E KRB the balance sheet date.

BRI AT L4 DLAN I R
B MARGHEWIHE > I
A A A R EL R D e ke
RZ5%%EH - TRIE(A)
BEORNERW - REMIRE
SN R 4 5 IR 2 36 A 14
(W) o EHEW - REM
AT LN S TR LN
& i A A4 [ A S R
B T 5 B0 A BR R i
B (B) IE# -

53

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
(negative) number below indicates an increase
(decrease) in profit where HKS$, US$ and GBP
strengthens against RMB. For a 5% weakening of
HKS$, US$ and GBP against the RMB, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and
the balances below would be (negative) positive.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Continued)

i)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

S ) o s B 0 3 2
Effect on
profit or loss
ZEENE ERRLF
2008 2007
Vid o n BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
bt HK$ (13,524) (14,680)
o US$ 959 349
e GBP 93 -
17 B B3 i) Credit risk
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As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties and financial guarantees provided
by the Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 27.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

RAEMARAT —RBLE R )E R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR B A RRIE M 5 (4

BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

6. TWTH %)
<. A Be s B E B R R (4

ii)

i)

15 £k g (A7)

A 52 5 384 7 8 2 A 1
R EERP R4S E 2 AR
FERT A 2 S8R4T BUR PR Y
ARAT > VB E S5 HE
BA R o

7S T T35 6 B T 2
AP R o BRAE SRR
A rh R U ) B B M B
B > A5 1 Sl AT o] L At
RiFEERZ EHE - Ho
IR A R 4 A R 0 K
EARA LG FH

AR 1 R 5 A 48 K
] SRAT PR PR IR IR AR o 549K
BN AR E R Y
ko VT ARV S UN
EH70% o &R EZR RN
MR R 2 10 H > HEA
%1 45 1 ERAT AT REBEOR A
P o R B L BT
FEEM - EHEILT
7R 52 [ T DA 2 I 1 ) 4
% o [ B ELRE R R A
4 B SR A R T 5 | S AE AT
BRI L fE]

) B 2

P & R - AR
35 00 S A I MERR B E T
2 Bl R Bl S HARF > DL
JREASS A 4 ) 2 7 78 B AR B
B EZ B - FHE
B B SRAT A R
[esi S e oD

A AR AR SR AT SR AE B
LB & A 2 AR > R
“EZEZENENA=TH
ENE TR P S R R E N
A 2 AR KR A U
16,000,000 JC ( —EZ AR :
##5 16,000,000 JC) ©

55

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Continued)

ii)

iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in the PRC. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds and by
geographical location, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse counterparties.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties for an amount up to 70% of the purchase
price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the
period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to resell the
repossessed properties. Therefore, management
considers it would recover any loss incurred arising
from the guarantee to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 30 June 2008, the Group has
available unutilised loan facilities of approximately
HK$16,000,000 (2007: HK$16,000,000).
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6. &WTH #) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
<. Ak BE A I H B B BUR (4) b. Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Continued)
i) I E B (A iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)
T Fe 251 A AR [ 4 A 45 I The following table details the Group’s remaining
HoAb 45 2 TR 4 B contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
W o 253 DA AR [ i Rl e and other liabilities. For non-derivative financial
S 0B . MRS liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on
£ 15 7 o BT I 4 e AR the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
B o 2y S [R] AL 55 R B AR based on the earliest date on which the Group can
SBERE - be required to pay. The table includes both interest

and principal cash flows.

BB R IR Liquidity risk tables
RERRAE
s AWEEE AN
HRAE PR EER0 CHRE-R EERE O EENE HEEE RReE
Weighted Total Carrying
average undiscounted amount
effective ~ Less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-2 years 2+ years flows 30.6.2008

%  #WTL BETT EWTZ BFTT #FTL #FTL #NTL
%  HKSWO0  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKSW00  HKS000  HKS'000

“BRNE 2008
B 5 RS Trade and other payables - 21321 620 158 - - 22,099 22,099
R-HAERBATZHE  Amount due to a related company 500 - 10,000 - 10,000 - 20,000 19,285
Riras - T Bank loans-variable rate 249 5,761 9,968 32,99 41974 282,199 378,898 356,300
27,082 20,588 33,154 57,974 282,199 420997 397,684
REFRLE
T KBRS AASTA
Elfle  OR-BA  —E=@A ZEAE-F -FEWE OWEME  WESE  EEH
Weighted Total Carrying
average undiscounted amount
effective Less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to | year 1-2 years 2+ years flows 30.6.2007
% EEFL BEFL BEFL BEFC BEFL O BEFL B
%o HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000

“ERLE 2007
B0 B (R Trade and other payables = 27,109 12,98 1786 - = 41823 41823
R—HARBARZHE  Amount due to a related company 5.00 - 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 30,000 8,175
BB T Bank loans-variable rate 25 7,386 11,069 33,865 43,714 330,135 426,169 388,200

34,495 33,997 35,651 3,714 340,135 497,992 458,198
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LEA PATS AR TR P BT (4

BWE FET/EAA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

6. BT H () 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
W. A ¢. Fair value

<5 P Qe BB (R AN AR
TH) ZAFERBEEBRKZ
AR A I 22 G B B 4 0 B AT
JiEE > RS S T LS O BLIE
W55 fE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions.

ANFIEER S > RERE WHIR
TEU A $ L #8 OAR 1 R 2 < P
FE I 4 Pl A A B PR AR A o

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

eV Y R ] BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
B 7ig | Business segments

R > ASE [ F Ao AL 2 W
maEMnl — YskHE YR -
AL 2 EF N FUERR A S DA Bt
B S S R

FEEEB RS

Pkl — HEAREMBERE YR
YIEME — HEREYE

A B ML AF SEH 2 BB R 2 T

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into two operating divisions-property sales and property
rental. These principal operating activities are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property sales — sales of properties developed by the Group
Property rental — leasing of investment properties

Segment information about these businesses is presented
below:

BT S

Property sales

/B 3N
Property rental

B
Consolidated

ZEIAE CTTLE CRRAFE CFTLF CRRIAE CRTLR

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
#WTC  EWTT #WTE  EWFTT BWTL BT
HKS$'000 _ HK$'000 _ HKS$'000 _ HK$'000 _ HKS$'000 _ HKS$'000

BER TURNOVER
EapIN R External sales 75,242 127,941 71,170 37,451 146,412 165,392
Ve B3 SEGMENT RESULT 6,583 13,504 99,291 313,951 105,874 327,455
FABHAMMA  Unallocated other income 42,119 23,468
KABATFZHE  Unallocated corporate

expenses (20,870) (14,353)
B A Finance costs (15,862)  (18,151)
W o s 1) Profit before taxation 111,261 318,419
BiIH Taxation (31,089) (95,922)
AR R Profit for the year 80,172 222,497
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SR G B IRIE R R ()

BWE FET/EARNA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

7. EHRWBE ) 7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

EHNW () Business segments (Continued)
B AATE BALANCE SHEET
/B i /B2 NS B
Property sales Property rental Consolidated
ZRENE CRTLE ZRENE CZTLE ZRINE CTTLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

BT BETT #WTE BETT #¥TX BT
HKS$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HKS$'000

i ASSETS
NERE Segment assets 385,517 424932 1,625,915 1,456,548 2,011,432 1,881,480
ENBEAFEE  Unallocated corporate
assets 193,322 129,275
GREEME Consolidated total assets 2,204,754 2,010,755
fifg LIABILITIES
AHA MK Segment liabilities 51,260 60,680 25,653 54,162 76,913 114,842
KAFAREAME  Unallocated corporate
liabilities 572,322 553,491
SRAKAH Consolidated total liabilities 649,235 668,333
HAb E A OTHER INFORMATION
VIES WERE KA By
Property sales Property rental Unallocated Consolidated
CERNE CFRLE CRRAE CZFLF ZZFNE CZTLF ZBRNE CFRALE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
EWTL  EETC BWTL BETL BWFTL O EFFo BFTL EETC
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS’000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
EAH Capital expenditures 1,649 62 - 388,568 39 662 1,688 389,292
i Depreciation 3 1,582 - = 1,437 264 1,808 1,846
R e Allowance for doubtful debts 2,591 = 3167 15593 - 100 5758 15,693

B8 /%  Revaluation surplus/increase

U in fair value of

I investment properties - - 3T 2719616 - - 3T 279616
HEME - B8 Loss (gain) on disposal of

Rk properties, plant and

() equipment 35 (90) - - 6 (20) 41 (110)
MERMFE  Amortisation of prepaid
2 lease payments 3,436 3,193 - - - = 3,436 3,193
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i BB R VAR R E (4
BWE FET/EAA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

7. BRI R 4

IRy 380

A AR ] 4 A B 5 AL H At
& o

R A AL Z MR S AT
FERRTAI(E ~ W36 - WA LS B
BB

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments

All of the Group’s sales are located in other regions in the
PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, additions to property, plant and equipment
and additions to investment properties analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

J3 8 B i Pk ~ B ek f v Lk ¢ /RS

Additions to
Carrying amount property, plant Additions to
of segment assets and equipment investment properties
ZRINE CTTEE ZRRANFE CTTLE ZFRANFE CTLLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

#WTE  BETT #WTE  EFTT BWTL BETT
HKS$000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HKS$'000

HE HAb T Other regions

in the PRC 2,011,432 1,881,480 1,649 62 - 388,568
Koy E Unallocated assets 193,322 129,275 39 662 - =
2,204,754 2,010,755 1,688 724 - 388,568
8. A 8. OTHER INCOME
it 2 9/ — =2 i
2008 2007
BT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HAb g A 45 Included in other income are:
SRATAE A Bank interest income 2,165 1,618
kA eRE Exchange gain, net 40,062 19,789
WM - B R R Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 110
By 2 R g Gain in receivable for
vendor’s undertakings 11,587 32,174
BRI H A R W RR AR 2 BT AR A Imputed interest income on
loan and other receivables 1,698 1,901
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Fie BB AR TR BT (49)
BWE FET/EANA =T HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

9. BA¥EWA 9. FINANCE COSTS
“RRNE L LE
2008 2007
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK3°000
I AR R R BB R 2 SRAT S B0 B Interest on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within
) five years 14,836 16,821
R — B BB A3 2 AR AR S Imputed interest expense on
amount due to a related
company 1,026 1,330
15,862 18,151
10. B8 mi gl 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
—EFNE “ERLTLE
2008 2007
W T #T T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
I i v 1 2 1B T 51 & TH Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
JRE B 3 R 2 WA 4R Impairment loss recognised in
- respect of receivables 5,758 15,693
A BT BCE H b A IR R 2 Fair value adjustment
A FEH in respect of other
receivables included
in administrative expenses 3,151 1,592
FEL oA SR R 615 Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 3,436 3,193
1% S T < Auditors’ remuneration 1,098 693
P Depreciation 1,808 1,846
Y - B R Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 41 -
%ﬁ’é%&f@ BfE&Z Operating lease rentals in
KEMEHE respect of office premises
and staff quarters 1,371 1,233
B THA (152 50A M5 Staff costs (including
11 (H) T2 2 4 Directors’ remuneration
shown in note 11(a)) 13,335 12,877
WEFA and after crediting:
T8 1] RS R K 2 W (B 18 Reversal of impairment loss
in respect of receivables 1,318 -
i T M i S8 AR A 4 T AR Net operating lease rentals
: received and receivable
g <tyEF Viik Gross rents from investment
i ‘ properties 71,170 37,451
W BRI E AR S Less: Direct expenses from
investment properties*® (28,729) (20,053)
42,441 17,398
= AL 6 S S A 2 R A = Reimbursements of letting commissions and property management fees of

885,000 7C (—FEZF LA #9,468,000
G ) BRLAH B 22 i ELAR A o

HK$885,000 (2007: HK$9,468,000) are set-off against the related expense.
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SEA B ARTE R BT ()

BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

11. 5 K 0@ B4 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
() EF M4 (a) Directors’ emoluments

ZRENFE ZFTLF
2008 2007
BT  EBHTIT
HK$000 HKS$'000

HHME Directors’ fees
YirESE Executive 720 560
AL AT HE Independent
non-executive 340 420
HAWE 4 (ATHEDS) - Other emoluments
(Executive Directors):
W KA AR R Salaries and other
benefits 1,379 360
AR FIET E AR Contributions to
retirement
benefits scheme 43 -
2,482 1,340
EfEEMNT & (ZFEL The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2007:
) ERZLEMEMT 10) Directors were as follows:
ZRRNE
2008
Hofbm 4
ek B A
M4 Hofb g A EiR LT ikl
Other

emoluments: Contributions

Salaries to retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
T T T #W T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

b3 Ui Mr. CHUA Domingo 120 - - 120
Bk AT 1 Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 100 - - 100
Bk AR SE £ Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua 100 - - 100
Witk 2ok Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 100 - - 100
TR Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 100 360 - 460
HIENESEAE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 120 - - 120
HERIE A4 Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 120 - - 120
SY Robin 5/ Mr. SY Robin 100 - - 100
SALAZAR Lourdes Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol 120 - - 120
Apostol %+

AW Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 40 - - 40
it Mr. WONG Sai Tat 40 1,019 43 1,102

1,060 1,379 43 2,482
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LSR5 BABS MRIE R EE (48)

BWE FET/EANA =T HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

11. #H3 R g B4 ) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
() e i (40) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
e i
2007
HAbm 4
ek RIREF
e FoAth 45 1 GRS FE
Other
emoluments:  Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
BT T HEWET T WL BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$000
b2 P Mr. CHUA Domingo 120 = = 120
WK £ Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 100 = = 100
Bk AR et Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua 80 - - 80
BRfR B A Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 80 - - 80
R ISEA Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 60 360 = 420
HIEJESEE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 120 = = 120
HERIF S Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 200 — — 200
SY Robin &4 Mr. SY Robin 100 - - 100
SALAZAR Lourdes Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol 40 - - 40
Apostol 2+
ES C S Mr. MAK Kwai Wing, Alexander * 80 = = 80
980 360 - 1,340
* ERFERENR ERZRNET A * Mr. MAK Kwai Wing, Alexander resigned as a Director of the
TN HBHEA LA R E I Company on 16 December 2006.
WA 4 S A T H A - No emoluments were paid to other Directors.
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Fie BB AR IR BT (49)
BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

11. EF R B E )

(&) h EL 4

T EFEHMA a2 ER
(ZFFL4F : EEH) > HE
T RO B SO EESE 11 (1) JH
Mo BR T4 N (ZRFLE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one Director

(2007: no Director), details of whose emoluments are set

out in note 11(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining

four individuals (2007: five individuals) are as follows:

SHNL) ZBAIT
SRRNE CEELE
2008 2007
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
W R H A AR A Salaries and other benefits 2,381 3,449
AR 5 4 3K Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 112 109
2,493 3,558

B2 A1 BN = 2 3T A B A
/0 ¥ 1,000,000 JG o

Each individual’s emoluments is less than HK$1,000,000

for both years.

12. B 12. TAXATION
“EENE LT LF
2008 2007
BT HEWET T
HKS$’000 HK3'000
FiTE S A4S - The tax charge comprises:
TS IT1S 8L Hong Kong Profits Tax
A Current year - -
T AT A ME AR Overprovision in prior years* - (15,190)
- (15,190)
i Al b i A5 o Income tax elsewhere in the PRC
A JE Current year 18,394 26,850
REAR B 2 HE Underprovision in prior years 2,050 9,835
20,444 36,685
o b (B ([ - M ELBE |) PRC Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT”) 4,950 13,967
RIERISH AR (W 7F 55 26 1) Deferred tax liabilities (note 26)
ARAEE Current year 5,695 78,718
o Bl s ) Attributable to change
in tax rate - (18,258)
5,695 60,460
31,089 95,922
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BWE FET/EARNA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

12. BEH (45) 12. TAXATION (Continued)
i ACE BN R AR A —TEY *
T vt P A3 B A AR A > 28 B R R R
F2oEZRELFENAZTHIEEERNE R ZE
e B BT 15 2 TE B B M JE RE SRR 2 8] 4
i o

The amount represented the overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax in
respect of a property disposed of in prior years as a result of the allocation
of the sales proceeds between taxable and non-taxable portions agreed
with the Inland Revenue Department during the year ended 30 June 2007.

ATEENENHZHANE  FHEST
EEEE BT AR A%
A A 2 R A5 BB R I 1%
B 16.5% > WA —EFE)FER _EE
JUFRRBLAR B AR - TR > s FIFS
B T AR IR AR A IR 2 A w I SRR 3 A
F:16.5% (FF L4 17.5%) 5157 -
FISBLB RN 2R EHE
TERENAENH =+ B 4R R IR
TR SR TE AP e o

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which includes the reduction
in corporate profits tax rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from
the year of assessment 2008-2009. Accordingly, Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year. The effect of
decrease in profits tax rate has been reflected in measuring the
current and deferred tax for the year ended 30 June 2008.

o ANE A TSR (T BT B ) &
b 3G (E B T4 B BRATRLR A o
ANAEE R B BT AR )G C 48 i B 5% 4
1 18% & 25% 2 [ AR BB 18 A& T
Lo AR R A B R A R A
SN BB A E A 2E A S AT Vg A
167 33k K 468 7 o I 2 T PN R A 2 A AR
EKE AR > T ZH18% (—FZF L
A1 15%) 1 HR B A 22 T A5 B 0 AR
R o iy I (E A B 9 P G (2 A M

PRC Foreign Enterprise Income Tax (“FEIT”) and LAT are
calculated at the rates prevailing in the PRC. The current
year’s PRC income tax charges have been arrived at after
taking into account these various tax incentives ranging
from 18% to 25%. Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the subsidiary of the Group that is qualified as
productive foreign investment enterprises established in cities
within the coastal economic zones and special economic zones
are entitled to PRC enterprise income tax at concessionary rate
at 18% (2007: 15%). LAT is charged at progressive rates on

PR B HEBL RS, -

ATERLFE=HNH > FEER
4563 5% 5 oA A I A 2 T A5 Bk
(FBrE ) > PEIBEBS R %
EAE T H N B g R A B A
Bl o AR PR RS 1 A OB IR E A A AR
BEA 5% HRERZAA > R F
TN~ ZBBIAE - B —FF
SRR R FEE Y BR
M2 Bl 3% 18% ~ 20% ~ 22% ~ 24% M
25% FRAERRIPEI R H TN
F—H — H B h 33% 2 25%
ZNE s BEBIEAROR —FE L
AEZNH = A DL e FE 3 A
I 7 5 B A AR R AR R T R
ZBLE o

O S 0 TE A (R 1 SR BT A S 545 26 TR
i o
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the applicable appreciation value.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63
of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of
the New Law. For companies that were qualified under the
old law or regulations and subject to an incentive tax rate of
15%, the tax rate will progressively be increased to 18%, 20%,
22%, 24% and 25% in the years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and
2012, respectively. For companies that were subject to a tax
rate of 33%, the New Law and Implementation Regulations
have changed the tax rate from 33% to 25% from 1 January
2008. The deferred tax balance has been adjusted as at 30 June
2007 to reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
respective periods when the asset is realised or the liability is

settled.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 26.

RARMEARAT —RBLE R )E R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
A%/T\ll

FAFS HE TR FAY 5 )

BWE FET/EAA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

12.

B (42)

AR N BLIE ST AT BAR i s R 2

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

Rl i v A IR A0 R before taxation per the consolidated income statement as
follows:
i i B A ¥k
Elsewhere
Hong Kong in the PRC Total
“ERNE CZTEE CRRAE CRTLE RN\ CZRLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
BFTL  EETFL BEFTL BETFL BFTL BEFa
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$’000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HKS'000
BRBLAT (B5R) W F)  (Loss) profit before taxation (8,509) (13,739) 119,770 332,158 111,261 318,419
Fuljikiis Application tax rate 16.5% 17.5% 25% 33%
AWFEHBAE  Tax at the domestic income
A2 BE tax rate (1,404) (2,404) 29,943 109,612 28,539 107,208
TR B A Ap Tax effect of expenses not
gtz deductible for tax
B purpose 122 1,039 13,830 17,450 13,952 18,489
FHEBUERAT  Tax effect of income not
ABBAZ taxable for tax
BB purpose (481) (303) (6,876) (6,325) (1,357) (6,628)
RUHEABEIEE  Tax effect of tax losses not
R recognised 1,759 1,675 452 - 2211 1,675
PIFEAF AR Overprovision in prior years - (15,190) - - - (15,190)
PR A RS Underprovision in prior years - - 2,050 9,835 2,050 9,835
FTHEIEA R Effect on tax exemptions
BIEEEGZME  granted to PRC subsidiary - - (16) (2,401) (16) (2,401)
BEREHZY Effect of change in tax rate - = - (18,258) - (18,258)
RAF B REER  Effect of different tax rate for
jjitiyiva subsidiaries subject to
WEARZEE  withholding tax - = (15,378) (17,491) (15,378) (17,491)
T ERZEE  Effect of LAT - = 4,950 13,967 4,950 13,967
A Others 4 ) 2,134 4,723 2,138 4,716
AEEHIAE Tax (credit) charge
(I 48) i of the year - (15,190) 31,089 111,112 31,089 95,922
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13. kB 13. DIVIDENDS
“RENE —RTLF
2008 2007
BT HEWET T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
AHEE L LEANH =T HILEE Final dividend paid in respect
LR R 0 S T 3 W 3 41 of year ended 30 June 2007
(CBENAE D) of 3 Hong Kong cents
(2006: 3 Hong Kong cents)
per share 6,573 6,573
AR ZEE ) FEANH =T HILEE Interim dividend paid in respect
O IR 58 o 1A i S R s T 3 41 of year ended 30 June 2008 of
(T BELAE ) 3 Hong Kong cents
(2007: 3 Hong Kong cents)
per share 6,573 6,573
13,146 13,146
HROEHRBEE _FZ/NENA=ZT The final dividend in respect of 3 Hong Kong cents per share
LR A7 R A S A B v R 3 Al > e for the year ended 30 June 2008 has been proposed by the
ZEAR B SR e SR AF R o o Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
annual general meeting.
14. )RR A 14. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
AR ) AR RS AT N A A e AR 2 A The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
Ty R4 AR AR B 2 AR W BRME R A equity holders of the Company is based on profit attributable
i ¥ 1 7 5 80,075,000 76 ( —FE L to equity holders of the Company of HK$80,075,000 (2007:
A 5 217,479,000 J0) K AR A B HK$217,479,000) for the year and on 219,103,681 (2007:
N E #4754 A 219,103,681 A% (% 219,103,681) ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.

F-B4E : 219,103,681 %) 5HE o

66 EARMARAT “BBLE BR )R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI HRIART 5T (42)
BWE FET/EAA =+ HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

15. Yook ~ B A% B B

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B -

MO A R L Hm
Plant and
machinery,

Motor equipment

vehicles and others Total
HEWTT BETT W
HK$°'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000

A
REEERFELH—H
SLH

NE

&

AFFLEANA=TH
SLH B

NE

Rk

REZZBNEAN=ZAH

it
REEERFELH—H
SLHR

A A
(ALt} % T 4 e

AFTLEANA=TH
SLHR R

AR
[R5 T e
REZZBNEAN=ZAH

e i
REFZNEAN =N

R=FFLEAA=TH

R - BB R R IR 4T A
A

H 15%—20%
R~ wf S H At 10% —33.3%
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COST

At 1 July 2006 8,699 28,754 37,453

Exchange realignment 391 1,507 1,898

Additions 550 174 724

Disposals (2,230) (212) (2,442)
At 30 June 2007 7,410 30,223 37,633

Exchange realignment 782 3,271 4,053

Additions - 1,688 1,688

Disposals (215) (590) (805)
At 30 June 2008 7,977 34,592 42,569

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2006 5,837 17,629 23,466

Exchange realignment 246 915 1,161

Provided for the year 606 1,240 1,846

Eliminated on disposals (2,132) (139) (2,271)
At 30 June 2007 4,557 19,645 24,202

Exchange realignment 510 2,100 2,610

Provided for the year 617 1,191 1,808

Eliminated on disposals (194) (529) (723)
At 30 June 2008 5,490 22,407 27,897

CARRYING AMOUNTS

At 30 June 2008 2,487 12,185 14,672

At 30 June 2007 2,853 10,578 13,431

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum:

Motor vehicles 15% to 20%
Plant and machinery, equipment and others 10% to 33.3%
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\/T\llxj‘

BE_ZF

KRETE M 2E (2
TENENH =1 H ILEE

For the year ended 30 June 2008

16.

17.

#EWE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

#EWT T

HK3°000
AT FAIR VALUE
HoFEEANELA—A At 1 July 2006 =
WISERE £ g Transferred from property interest 844,000
T W) SR Transferred from properties held for sale 228,730
S R Exchange realignment 58,426
AR AR Revaluation surplus 254,569
T E N Increase in fair value 25,047
REFFLEAA=1H At 30 June 2007 1,410,772
SR R Exchange realignment 154,918
NI N Increase in fair value 37,527
REZZMNEAH=ZTH At 30 June 2008 1,603,217

Mo EENENA=1H - AEEH
2L 7 N T-{E T R i L A A () NI e
R 28 2 B ST A A B (R A — K
TS A 0T A S B 2 A B A
7% HET ZAER o HAFBHE
Rl E2 & B B % A A 708 YR R [ A5 AU AR
B b S Wy 2 2 A (E AE BRI R% A (E
T AR B A (R R HE 5 3l 2 BT B
R R G A AR o EAGSI
BN P8 5 B 1M A7 K 2 i 5 T AR I
#37,527,000 7 ( —F F L ¢ i
25,047,000 70) EBEALE AL RN -
FIT A 4 ) S 4 A6 s w1 8L Je R TP
T4 -

A M B A LUE R E S R A
W < Wi i 2 A (2 B 368
VA HE T 5 o

R YIE

A SR B R R R 36 T L H B R IR
A BE Y — B b 2 o o el P RE 2 FELAST
LB SRIE AN 3R 22 ) o il
EE - NINE+—A TR A
T04F « R_FF=SE+ TR - AEH
T (B TR T R B = (1 B )y )
S H (B R AR o AR 4R N0 O A A R
R AFA A - st (5 PR R -
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17.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
30 June 2008 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to
International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
The revaluation gave rise to a net gain arising from changes in
fair value of HK$37,527,000 (2007: HK$25,047,000) which
has been credited to the consolidated income statement. All
the investment properties are situated in PRC under medium-
term lease.

All the investment properties of the Group held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

The properties held for development of the Group represent
prepaid lease payments of land use rights and direct
reclamation costs for a piece of land situated at Tung Kok Tau
in Shenzhen, the PRC with a land use right of up to 70 years
commencing on 18 November 1999. In December 2003, the
Group paid the outstanding balance of land premium to the
Shenzhen Land Administration Bureau (“Land Bureau”) of
the PRC. The Group is in the process of obtaining the land use
right certificate for such long lease.
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17.

18.

19.

R E ) 17. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
REERENFENHE=1TH > (FERY At 30 June 2008, included in the properties held for
25 SRR B 45 s 17,124,000 00 (. development are amounts of HK$17,124,000 (2007:
TELAE  #EH15,451,00000) M s HK$15,451,000) and HK$7,674,000 (2007: HKS$6,924,000)
W57,674,000 00 ( - FE L being reclamation costs and interest capitalised. As a result
6,924,000 7C) > 43 Al B SE g AR K A of the re-zoning and re-planning of the city on which the
BEAAL A ZREE o Y20 E 2 I properties are located, the Group is currently in negotiations
TR HE AT HR o [ e FH L # - B R with the Land Bureau to plan for the redevelopment of the
Bl 75 Lo R 2K > A4 B B E B 1 )R pE properties in order to take into account of such re-zoning
B FHEI A R o i LR and re-planning. The reclamation works were suspended
ARME R AE > HR Ik AR P AR A AN R accordingly and no further reclamation costs and interest
BAEARL - expenses were capitalised upon the suspension of the
reclamation works since then.
XL E'S 18. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
AL [ F B ) 2E T RS R B DA A A The properties held for sale of the Group are situated in the
SRR - B AL 19,892,000 U0 PRC and held under medium term lease. Included in the
(T FZ LA #188,915,0000C) 2 amount are properties held for sale of HK$19,892,000 (2007:
Ry > FIAA A B E T 0 HK$88,915,000) expected to be realised within the next
HINH - twelve months after the balance sheet date.
2k M B 5k 19. LOAN RECEIVABLES
ZERENE CETLE
2008 2007
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
R R 2K Loan receivables 3,928 6,184
W SRR Less: Allowance for
doubtful debts (3,928) (3,230)
- 2,954

BRI DML R B R 2 Y 2AE
A A B RERGE HE
A RNERE - R EELEASNH=T
H > A B 45T LAY A 5HE > T
FEBAEA R 5.85% o
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The loan receivables were secured by the home buyers’
properties, interest free and repayable within next twelve
months after the balance sheet date. As at 30 June 2007, the
amounts were measured at amortised cost and the effective
interest rate was 5.85% per annum.
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19. LK HEBORX (47)

19.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

SRIEB S ) Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
CRRAE CERLF
2008 2007
BT HEWET T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
i) At beginning of the year 3,230 1,607
BB e TR R Impairment loss recognised 329 1,492
S R Exchange realignment 369 131
S At end of the year 3,928 3,230
20. Jofb b ¥ A 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
S 5 B A IR Trade and other receivables
ZRRNE CETLE
2008 2007
W T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$000
B 5 RE N AR I Trade receivables 38,341 31,255
HAh B S R IE Other receivables 47,077 94,150
85,418 125,405
W RARE Less: Allowance for
doubtful debts (29,108) (22,340)
56,310 103,065
ST E Analysed as:
BHRNREEEL RS Trade and other receivables
i A RE i B TE as shown under current assets 50,262 74,851
EFIRIEREEE 2 Other receivables as shown
A B S AR IE under non-current assets 6,048 28,214
56,310 103,065
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

20. HAb 4% 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

B 5 B e A Sk (A7)

RoEBENFENH=TH > HAGEI
R A&, B B 45 B R A B AT I 4R AT 1K
R ECE M B AL WSS R (Al
HEHRAG LB B R R 5.85% (. EE L
1 5.85%) BRGNS A ) 2 MR K
H#529,936,000 7T (- FEE-LAF: B
36,109,000 7G) 5 Kt = EF L NN H
=T H A R AR AR R A A
A H FKG 2 BEE R 5 7,725,000
(= FT L4 #147,962,000 08) °
o B 5 56 19 T A JIr B 8 19 3 5 4
Ah s ALY ESE RTTEEF T
B=THZEEH - RAME 24
FEWCR B B & 2 IRHS Wi A e Wi i 3k
A B BN A AT o B B R U R K
(FOTR IR B ) 2 BRES A 40 R

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

At 30 June 2008, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment
to banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group, of
HK$29,936,000 (2007: HK$36,109,000) with collateral of
properties at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of
5.85% (2007: 5.85%) and an amount receivable as at 30 June
2008 for vendor’s undertakings of HKS$7,725,000 (2007:
HK$47,962,000) in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries
in the prior years. For property sales, other than home loans
disclosed in note 19, the Group allows an average credit
period of 30 days to its customers. Rentals receivable from
tenants and service income receivables from customers are
payable on presentation of invoices. The aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debt is as follows:

SRENE CERLE
2008 2007
YT ENTT
HKS$’000 HK$°000

0HZE60HIA
61 HE9HRK
90 H VL I

A TR 2 32 0 % PO LR AT
A RS ETB R K P S R E R
B R PGB o &P IR B
I BB o TAARAEREN - A | AR
B oA e K& P 2 8 SRR AR A
L MBS 25% > MEEFIEE S
BEH N 2 45 B MR 15% » H R B 5
TS 3K 2 86% Mf JF 4R MH B s (H - .
A RIFEREE RO -

A A 18 B IR AR T B A R T VS
1,923,000 70 (= FE L4 #H 41,000
J6) ZAEBS N > S E R A H OB
W T A A T R A R s R
o BME B R KA TR S > i
B R 52 SE T AR [A] o AR 4 [E]
0 ARAFFH 79 5% 55 5 B 2 AT IER o 5%
26 R A R T 257 408 TR % 7 3 1 100
H(ZZZLH 30H) -

71

0-60 days 12,431 14,552
61-90 days 161 -
Over 90 days 1,572 -

14,164 14,552

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly. During the year, the aggregate turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is less than
25% of the Group’s total turnover. There is no customer who
represents more than 15% of the total balance of trade debtors.
86% of the trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired
and have good settlement repayment history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$1,923,000 (2007: HK$41,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. There has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the management
considers that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average
overdue age of these receivables is 100 days (2007: 30 days)
overdue.
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20.

HoAb 4 @& i (42) 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
BU5h B M Ab E Ok (4) Trade and other receivables (Continued)
28 119 4 A HE o 1 2 S 388 40 4 Aging of past due but not impaired
“RBNE —TTEHE
2008 2007
YT #EWT T
HK$’000 HK3°000
i Overdue:
0H=30HRK 0-30 days 222 41
31 HE 60 H A 31-60 days - -
61 H 90 H A 61-90 days 129 -
90 H Ak Over 90 days 1,572 =
HE Total 1,923 41
IR 1B 52 ) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
“EENE T LE
2008 2007
BT #EWT T
HKS$’000 HK3°000
AR At beginning of the year 22,340 7,372
TB A e 46 13 1] Impairment loss reversed (1,318) -
A 4R R Impairment loss recognised 5,429 14,201
i R Exchange realignment 2,657 767
AR At end of the year 29,108 22,340

TE 5 E 5 o (05 AR RE D I > A
ENUISE Y S Lt N E o
B H A, H G R R o
T R 1E R SRR A DL SN TS T AR R
Z IR R -

FIREE OB 2 W EBERN Y
Sy FEC A B i R KA L A R 3R
#5.429,000 70 ( =& E L4
14,201,000 JC)  #% MBS A 2 A 15
PRSI LR R A o AR 4R I R
FifT B a4 B 2 AT AT B IR -
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In determining the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. The Directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade and other receivables with an aggregate balance
of HK$5,429,000 (2007: HK$14,201,000) which are in severe
financial difficulties with long outstanding balances overdue.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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20. Jofb S @b A (4) 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
B R % Amounts due from minority shareholders
W2 SEE AR - S ZE 4 B K IRy The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
{38 R 5,800,000 70 (— B % demand, of which HKS$5,809,000 (2007: HKS$5,161,000)
LA 5,161,000 T) A I AL is due from Shenzhen Marine Group Company Limited,
AR A R R 2 R > %A A a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
N ) BRI N R E I 2 s v A 26 Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd (“Zhen Wah”),
FRZS &l ([ 13 |) (1) D > SR holding 20% equity interests in Zhen Wah.
HIHE20% HE 4t o
HUATE R KB4 Bank balances and cash
SRITHEGR R S AEE G 28 Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
4 B BRTE =AW A 35 DA AT AS BT 2% deposits with maturity of three months or less held with banks
AT - FHEBANE RS F were not restricted in use. The average effective interest rate is
2.7% (ZFELAE © 3.8%) ° 2.7% (2007: 3.8%) per annum.
21. BB B 30 ME A MRk 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
WEFERZNFARNA=1TH > Bh K At 30 June 2008, the balance of trade and other payables
il B AT B RR 5 B B 95 1K 5,739,000 7T included trade payables of HK$5,739,000 (2007:
(B E LA #121,452,00000) 2 HK$21,452,000). The aged analysis of trade payables is as
B 5 REAT IR K o B 5 EAT Rk 2 MR i follows:
SHTUE
“EENE CFTLE
2008 2007
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
0HZE60HMRK 0-60 days 471 7,433
60 HPL E Over 60 days 5,268 14,019
5,739 21,452
L Ath, B AT MR R 32 BB AR B i T The other payables mainly include rental deposits and receipt
WA 45 DA B FEA RE I H o in advance and other accruals.
22. BHcH B ERE 22. PRE-SALE DEPOSITS RECEIVED

AR FIAAEAG H AR+ 8 A iR
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The amount is expected to be recognised as revenue within the
next twelve months after the balance sheet date.
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23.

24.

R —[R147 B Bk 2 i) Z kO

R — WA BB A A 2 B REE
TEENENH =B IEEE R
[ e /NI R AW
520,000,000 JC ( —F F L 4F 0 HE
30,000,000 7C) Z f* B 3K IE o i &
FANFENA=ZTH » s ERTEANTE
B AW S AR SR EIR BB
10,000,000 JC ° #% #K A% 5% (B E
L 0 5%) 2 B BRI R DL s A
FHE o AR > UG AL R £
A Wi g 2% T4 1130 B 1,026,000 0T (—
R HEH 1,330,000 0) ZBEF
FIEBA S o 25 TS0 s A B A 7
N B K I RERE 22 -

23.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

The amount due to related company represents the retained
sum of HK$20,000,000 (2007: HK$30,000,000) out of the
total consideration under the agreement for the acquisition
of certain subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2006.
The amount will be repaid in three yearly payments of
HK$10,000,000 each from the completion of the pre-sale
contracts on 30 September 2006. The amount is measured
at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 5% (2007:
5%) per annum. During the year, an imputed interest expense
of HK$1,026,000 (2007: HK$1,330,000) is charged to the
consolidated income statement in respect of this balance. The
related company is a company in which certain Directors have
significant equity interests.

w7 iRk 24. BANK LOANS
“EFNE CERLLE
2008 2007
W T # T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AR Secured 351,300 383,200
AL Unsecured 5,000 5,000
356,300 388,200
JRE A R SR AT BRI T The bank loans were repayable
as follows:
—AF R R BRI R Within one year or on demand 40,300 36,900
— AR AS A AR More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 40,500 35,300
TAAEAREA B A48 AT More than two years, but not
exceeding five years 275,500 316,000
356,300 388,200
W SRR AR — Less: Amount repayable
A A P BRI within one year shown
under current liabilities 40,300 36,900
TN — A% MR R Amount due after one year 316,000 351,300

SRAT L AL A B i B
PEHEAH > I IS WA -
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The bank loans are secured by the investment properties
situated in Shanghai, the PRC and denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
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24. BUTRK (47) 24. BANK LOANS (Continued)
%55 B AR AR A W SRAT IR SR S ([ The loans carried interest at variable rates ranging from 0.61%
EWE D HLE0.61% % 0.65% 2 7% to 0.65% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
FFS (—FBF L FERELHME (2007: 0.61% to 1% over HIBOR).
0.61% % 1%) 715 °
25. Ak 25. SHARE CAPITAL
“EENER —EFRNER
—EERLE “RFLE
2008 & 2007 2008 & 2007
By ¥ H MY
Number
of shares Amount
HEWT T
HKS$’000
T B THI (EL WS ¥ 1.00 0.2 Ordinary shares of
S alidiig HK$1.00 each
hE Authorised 300,000,000 300,000
S 2y Issued 219,103,681 219,104
26. ERERLE A E 26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
DA By AS4F JBE % 3 4 3% 46 341 [ A 48 |31 The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
WEER > & B R AL B A B i N A B s and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
g : periods are as follows:
e I Bt B L E AL /BT ) Be¥mE
PRC dividend Property  Investment W
withholding tax interest properties Total
BHT T BT T BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
(Hfat)
(Note)
ZEENFELH—H At 1 July 2006 - 27,721 = 27,721
B Reclassification - (27,721) 27,721 -
TESE AW AR R MR Charge to consolidated
income statement - - 78,718 78,718
GES T bl Effect of change in tax rate - = (18,258) (18,258)
SO Exchange realignment - - 2,380 2,380
CERBELEAA=ZTH At 30 June 2007 - - 90,561 90,561
AR W R N AR Charge to consolidated
income statement 23 - 5,672 5,695
PRk Exchange realignment 1 - 10,133 10,134
“EENEANZTH At 30 June 2008 24 - 106,366 106,390
75 Dynamic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007-2008




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 O BATSBRTE LT (48

BWE FET/EANA =T HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

26.

7

28.

B HE B FL4 ()
B - — WO 2 R PRI H 3

RE i 14 JER 52 A ST B A 2 [ £ A ) 2
RERR N TE 2 22BN BLB L -

WoEENFEANHA=Z+H > AL
A AE G 85 A 2 38 A1) 1 A 7 ) Bl T ks 1R
Fyits 130,944,000 0 (B F LA i
518,475,000 70) © XK REHE E A A
I - WO HERR AR AL B TH & - 7%
TR0 T s 2, v e R A A e o

oAk £ 48

A AE [ v Ay b B L 5T — 5 M JE H
HIAE R E R IR AT (R 5 B E R
Wefto h EENENH=ZTH -
A AR B AR 5 AF S AR AT B AR A s
#262,440,000 7T ( . FE-LAE - B
357,976,000 JG) ° A /A A H HFR L
TRZAE B R G 2 AARfE B
WA BR BB 45 OR G [F) 2 8 Ok e B
HEHZATPEIEAREKX -

LINEWR
AL Ry AL
REEE A > ALY T

N B AR v AR 2 A AR i D L A
AT -

26.

227/

28.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Note: It represents the tax effect on the difference between the historical
costs of the property interest in the books of a subsidiary on the date of
acquisition and the fair value of the property interest held by the Group.

At 30 June 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$30,944,000 (2007: HKS$18,475,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Such tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement
of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2008, the
Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$262,440,000 (2007: HK$357,976,000). The Directors of
the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the
balance sheet dates are insignificant on the basis of the low
loan ratio.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises as follows:

“RRNE FRLE

2008 2007

BT T

HKS$’000 HKS$000

R—4EN Within one year 592 1,309
R BB RN In the second to fifth

(W& EAETEN) year inclusive - 520

592 1,829

HEL ' fih - 42 2 R 4F > T AL 8 4R 3
R A& T E /Y o
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Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed over the term of the leases.
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28. MLERYE (4 28. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
A Ty AL - The Group as lessor:
MEEEH UTFTEERSESHEM At the balance sheet date, the following assets were rented out
H o under operating leases:

SRENE BT LE
2008 2007
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000

BBk Investment properties 1,429,628 1,264,618
FrEWE Properties held for sale 30,832 27,819
FEGRETTHHER R = mARM These assets were leased out for average term of three years
A REAE > ME A AR OR B R with renewal options given to the lessees for further periods
AF o T AE B A 2 AH 4B T [ 2 1Y o not exceeding two years. Rentals are fixed over the term of the
leases.

&G H - A B HAE &5 ET A As at the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
i AC B H BT 21 A s D AL B A AR tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
LI under non-cancellable operating leases:

“RENF ZFTLF
2008 2007
BT  EBHTIL
HK$000 HKS$'000

=N Within one year 58,744 64,707
AR R IR In the second to fifth year
(W& BLIEEN) inclusive 121,720 116,362
FAERE Over five years 23,036 30,170
203,500 211,239
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29. 56 R B hE T3 29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARFRZBE—F+ A =+—H
R A — T 8 e R M T 1 (1B Rt
W) -

RME RSB ELESR - B
TR A G2 B RS > I —
F——4E+ZH T HEW - REE
SeRBRAE R > AR ) HE S Al AR
ANE| R B ARBATES - B LR
RIS R RS B AR A A S
I e A GG 2 B > BT T R
AR ) By 2 B R RR R o A R
15 4 R DR (i) $% T 18 S 7R B 5 H
TEW A T b7 2 AN B e W T A
(i) B8 7B SRR R RE B3 A A4
B2 H TR S T 2 AR N F AT i
TAE 5 J (iii) AR A B T {E =4 2
R o MR SRR IR S v 4% T
B R B B H e 22 B B SRR
JEERE ST B HEME R H AR A B B 81T IR
B2 10% o fi BWAT (1 i s = -
B Tl & &2 HmE AT+ 6 A
T AT G 4 R AR N ) B R AT
AR 1% > b Bl itk ¥ R AT % 48 e 5B A
BE o FiHRAB ST RR R R B > A AT R
TR MR B AR AR E R G
AU > HERIS B AR T2 s
TAE - R R T A
SAHMRAE 1T

H A SERR R AR B > AN R B R
B AFULMES - BT R EKSH
MR AR 4 0 O R AR B A T
7B e R e > R —FF AN
A=+H > ZFFELFEANA=Z1THE K
TERBNFELHA - BN RTRHEZ
HESERRIAE -
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 December
2001 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for the purpose of
providing incentives to Directors, employees and eligible
participants and will expire on 20 December 2011. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to Executive Directors, employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries and such eligible participants
at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price per share not less than
the highest of i) the closing price of a share of the Company
listed on the Stock Exchange at the date of grant of the option;
ii) the average of the closing price of a share of the Company
on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options shall be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% in aggregate of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of its adoption.
No Director, employee or eligible participant may be granted
options under the Share Option Scheme which will enable
him or her if exercise in full to subscribe for exceeding 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company in any 12-month
period. The option period for which the options granted can
be exercisable, shall be such period as notified by the Board
of Directors of the Company, save that it shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant subject to the terms of
the Share Option Scheme. Nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of each grant.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ Directors, employees and
such eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption, and there were no share options outstanding
as at 30 June 2008, 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2006.
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30. B A EH 30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

(F) A EBERE+H—HR » & (a) Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined

W A B B R B B E
PBOR A A EH B (12 Bifkak o8
et ) o RZEHE 2 E A b L
ZAENE R > M B A SR M 2 A
v BRI EE o i R B AT U4 B
PBCHTR 2 BB FOR R EH#
SUJ 7 4 546 T DA 38l D 2 ik S A4
DA A SR H AR 2 B o

HEZEZTFE+H-HE > &
S M R L A Rl o E R K
BARFHI 2 B Tl — k2
B PUEE SRR R
BB 2 5H8 o WSRO AR
452 5 1l M > A5 < w0 491 1 SR B
SEMFEM - B HZE
FE S22 RE N HE 5 S B AR
B R PR R o RS
FEEIGRp] - R 3 % H AR B 23 R R
FEAR BT B 2 B AR itk o i
AT ] A S B T 4 A T 4 Bk
AL H & B -

H 2 R OB IR R B KR A B wt
BT 51 B A N R 32 79 IRARAR
AIFHBIBEER > ToASE M5 S T
BRI ET B 2 B S A A {3

e
A °©

AR B A > 3B R A R A3 R
185,000 70 ( = FE L4 ¢
M 123,000 J0) EFFASZE A I 45 R
ﬁq o

RoEE/ENH=Z1TH BB
PR 44 1 2 AR AL RGR AR E 1 T ik 2
Z R 2,000 T (—FEE £
A W 1,00000) 0 K E A A
VWAL A 4 [ AR 95 o AR AL SR AR
F L E AE AR BT K -
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contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme were held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Where there are
employees who leave the Defined Contribution Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the amount of
the forfeited contributions would be used to reduce future
contributions payable by the Group.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set
up a MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution
Scheme were given one-time option to choose to transfer
to the MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at rate specified in the rules. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years by the employer.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated income statement represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

During the year, retirement benefits contributions
charged to the consolidated income statement are
HKS$185,000 (2007: HK$123,000).

At 30 June 2008, there are forfeited contributions
of HKS$2,000 (2007: HKS$1,000) which arose upon
employees leaving the Defined Contribution Scheme and
which are available to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group under Defined Contribution Scheme in the
future years.
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BWE FET/EANA =T HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

30.

31.

32.
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30.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

(b) According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the Beijing
and Shenzhen local governments, respectively, to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits contributions
charged to the consolidated income statement are
HK$208,000 (2007: HK$639,000).

. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home
loans provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in
note 27, the Group has also pledged its bank deposits of
HK$16,817,000 (2007: HK$31,469,000) to banks to secure
such home loans granted to the home buyers. The deposits
carry floating interest rate of 3.78% (2007: 2.61%) on average
and will be released upon the release of relevant home loans
granted to home buyers. The fair value of such deposits at 30
June 2008 approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

At 30 June 2008, the Group had pledged its investment
properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC with a carrying
amount of HK$1,046,441,000 (2007: HK$920,604,000) and
an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from the investment
properties to the bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed in notes 20 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, during the year, the Group

FERENEER N AL S has entered into the following transactions with related
companies:
“RRNE FRLE
2008 2007
BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$000
O AR 4 S A B 2 Rental and management
fees paid 12,580 9,012
A TR 1 s 22 Consultancy service fees paid 1,000 1,060
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BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other outstanding balances with the following related
companies, which are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand, at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007 are as follows:

SRENE BT LE
2008 2007
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000

AN B 5 B F A R W R
Z MEWSCAT B 2 W%

AN B 5 B F A R W R
Z MEWSCA B 2 W) SR

AN B 5 B FL A IR A R
Z BT B 2 R SOR

A BRI 7 TS B T R R4 A )
WA BOHERE AT > W2 F A R E
K2 -

ALBMELERAERAESR > M
S BN S E PR RS 11 TN -
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Deposits due from related
companies included in trade
and other receivables 264 333

Amounts due from related
companies included in trade
and other receivables 1,133 1,062

Amount due to a related
company included in trade
and other payables 198 1,348

The related companies are companies in which certain
Directors have equity interests in these companies that give
them significant influence over these companies.

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors,
details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 11.
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

33. AR AMRER 33. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY
AANFAIRGEAAEERABRERNG Balance sheet information of the Company at the balance sheet
S date includes:

ZREANE ZFTLHF
2008 2007
BT  EBHTT
HK$000 HKS$'000

B G Non-current Assets
T B A W RE 4 Interests in subsidiaries 142,164 104,327
— 1 B Jg > W R Loan to a subsidiary 742,860 727,756
885,024 832,083
it B Current Assets
A 18 Wi K IH Other receivables and
B AT prepayment 101 100
SRATAE B K & Bank balances and cash 547 492
648 592
it 8 & it Current Liabilities
HoAb AT R Other payables 2,262 1,879
it B & A A Net Current Liabilities 1,614) (1,287)
883,410 830,796
AR R At Capital and Reserves
i@ Share capital 219,104 219,104
i Reserves 581,064 548,102
800,168 767,206
IF B F A Non-current Liabilities
R B g A K IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 83,242 63,590
83,242 63,590
883,410 830,796

82 RAEMARAT —RBLE R )E R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4R A RRIE M 5 (4

BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

34, tSBH H#BEME 34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
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As disclosed in note 35, the Group lodged a petition for
international arbitration in respect of the dispute with Chinese
joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity interest
held in Zhen Wah. The arbitral proceedings have been heard
during the year and an arbitral award has been made by China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission on
30 July 2008 in relation thereto (the “Award”).

Pursuant to the Award, amongst others, (a) the shareholders’
agreement dated 20 December 1996, in which the Group’s
shareholding in Zhen Wah increased to 80%, (“Shareholders’
Agreement”) shall be legally valid and effective; (b) the
revised constitutional documents, in which the Group’s
shareholding in Zhen Wah increased to 80%, (“Constitutional
Documents”) are not yet effective as such constitutional
documents have not yet been duly approved by the relevant
PRC government authorities; and (c) the registered capital
of Zhen Wah is confirmed to be RMB21,000,000, of which
RMB10,290,000 and RMB10,710,000 has been contributed by
the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, respectively,
and that the equity interests of Zhen Wah are held by the
Group and the Chinese joint venture partner as to 49% and
51%, respectively.

In the opinion of the Directors, with reference to the
Company’s PRC legal advisers, as a result of the Award,
(a) the Group is entitled to enforce its rights under the
Shareholders’ Agreement; (b) although the equity interests in
Zhen Wah as held by the Group and the Chinese joint venture
partner are 49% and 51%, respectively, in view of the fact that
the Constitutional Documents are not yet effective since such
Constitutional Documents have not yet been duly approved by
the relevant PRC government authorities, the Group has the
right to seek for the approval of the relevant PRC government
authorities in connection with the Constitutional Documents;
and (c) the additional capital contribution of RMB32,550,000
by the Group for increase in its shareholding from 49% to 80%
would be considered as advances to Zhen Wah by the Group.
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34. B HBIME (2) 34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)
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Prior to the Award, Zhen Wah was accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Group. Its financial statements were
consolidated line by line into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements after eliminating the intra-group
transactions and balances with Zhen Wah. As a result of the
Award, the management considered that no unilateral control
can be imposed by either party; Zhen Wah is reconsidered as a
jointly controlled entity of the Group and such financial items
previously consolidated line by line would be derecognised
and the Group’s share of net assets and results in Zhen
Wah would then be accounted for under the equity method
based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah,
and the advances to Zhen Wah by the Group would not be
eliminated but included as part of the Group’s interests in
a jointly controlled entity, following the date of the Award.
The management expects that such reclassifications have no
material effect on the Group’s net results in the next financial
accounting period.
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Fra B IR TART 5T (42)
BWE FET/EAA = HILERE
For the year ended 30 June 2008

35. REWIBA RN

A ZEBENER ZEELFESNH =T
H> FEMBARZFERWT

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2008 and 2007
are as follows:

AR
CHITR [i {5 2 v
/i BmA/ o M A
B 2 BRI AP A Al EEEE
Proportion of
Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
i1 ]
Ordinary Others
T FAR AT Fik #%1,2007C - 100%  REER
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200 - 100% Investment holding
J I s e R B (M) - F4229,500,000 ¢ 9%  WERERERE
ARAT (Writ—)
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note 6) - US$829,500,000 95% Property investment
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) and development
RS EAR L Fik 2T - 100%  BREEERE
Billion Stock Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of nominee
Limited services
HRE LR E= AV - 100%  REER
Broad Capital Investments British Virgin Islands Uss1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
R ERARAT Fik 2T - 100%  WERE
China Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Property investment
BHARLTA EEELRE F450,000 T - 100%  REER
Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited British Virgin Islands U$$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
BHBBARLR Fik 110,000 1T - 100%  HE
Dynamic Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Financing
EHER (LR ARAF EY g ELab - 100%  HE
Dynamic Management (Beijing) British Virgin Islands HK$7 - 100% Financing
Limited
EHERREARAR Fik 2T - 100%  REERRE
Dynamic Management Services Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of
Limited management services
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35. REWIBA A ) 35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR
CHI R C#filA/
Bk BhA/ ol A
WHB 27 41 6 BRI i A i EEEE
Proportion of
Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
31 ]
Ordinary Others
Fit LI - 100%  REERRE
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of
management services
B (1B HEELRE F21% - 100%  EMHW
ERARAR
Dynamic Real Estate (China) British Virgin Uss$1 - 100% Management
Management Consultancy Limited Islands consultancy
HEELRE #2101 - 100%  REEK
Glory Diamond Inc. British Virgin Islands Uss10 - 100% Investment holding
SRR Fit LI - 100%  REEK
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
AREREARL BEELRE F21% - 100%  REEK
High Grand Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$1 - 100% [nvestment holding
BB AR Fit LAV - 100%  WERE
Move On International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Property investment
BEELRE FE1% - 100%  REEK
Pearlway nvestments Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 - 100% Investment holding
T 3 R (L) - N 80%  EFRkOER MR
ARAH 53,550,000 7 (Wit=)
Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour PRC (Note 7) - RMBS3,550,000 80% Temporary port operations/
Enterprises Ltd. (Note 2) property development
SHERERRAT Fit 10,0007 - 100%  REEK
Strong Way Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
EERRARLA Fit 40,000 7 - 100%  WERE
Yonderille Developments Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000 - 100% Property investment
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35. REWIBA AN )
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o AR B ESFLE A I HE 80% AR HE
T (L 45 A% 42 181 B2 vy 4 0 % o Ak G ey
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BIEARY o BB PR i — 25 R R B
FEAE 34 THIN B % o
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ARAFHERGHAS - TAREA R
FyHEREA o
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast”)
had a registered capital of US$30,000,000. The amount of US$29,500,000
disclosed above represents capital paid by the Group up to 30 June 2008.
However, the Group’s entitlement to share the profit in Beijing Longfast
was agreed to be at 95%.

2. The Group is in dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to
the percentages of equity interest held by two parties in Zhen Wabh.
The Group has been negotiating with the Chinese joint venture partner
to resolve the dispute and to acquire all the equity interest held by the
Chinese joint venture partner on real estates development in Tung Kok
Tau. As the dispute has been prolonged and hinders the operations of
Zhen Wah including annual inspection of business licence, the Group has
lodged a petition for international arbitration in this regard. Based on the
opinion of a PRC lawyer, the 80% equity interest owned by the Group,
excluding the temporary port operation of profit sharing ratio of 49:51
between the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, in Zhen Wah
is valid and legally enforceable as at the balance sheet date. The further
details of international arbitration is disclosed in note 34.

3. Other than Dynamic (B.V.I.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which are
wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held by the
Company indirectly.

4. The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

5. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year, or at any time during the year.

6. The subsidiary established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture.

7. The subsidiary established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign equity
joint venture.

Dynamic Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007-2008




Financial Summary

S s ik 2

PR By BTl 5 4R FE 2 S S 28 B R DA X A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities for

AhHEE the years stated is as follows:
EtE 3 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BEAH =1 HIL4EE
Year ended 30 June
CERRWNE CRRAE ZRRNE ZRRLE ZEFNE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

BT EETT EWToL EWTIT EWTI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 _ HKS$'000  HKS$’000

BEH Turnover 410,257 126,939 171,469 165,392 146,412
44 B U A Profit for the year 38,211 94,677 131,455 222,497 80,075
B LA Basic earnings

B per share

(7B < i) (Hong Kong cents) 16.2 42.1 59.4 99.3 36.5
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Financial Summary (Continued)

W E (4)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY
MAH=1H
At 30 June
ZERNE ZERAE ZERANE CERLE ZRFRNE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
BT BT BT EETr BETIE
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$’000
ESE S Y& Property, plant and
equipment 13,541 12,475 13,987 13,431 14,672
gL/ Investment properties 420,000 500,000 - 1,410,772 1,603,217
VESEN Property interest - - 455,432 - -
ERIRLIE S Properties held for
development 200,195 219,848 225,654 235,874 255,712
oAb RS R Other receivables 15,062 18,442 27,220 28,214 6,048
4 2 Goodwill 161 - - - -
B HRE IR Loan receivables 14,729 7,147 2,164 - -
T G Current assets 514,188 571,269 555,089 322,464 325,105
Y MAE Total assets 1,177,876 1,329,181 1,279,546 2,010,755 2,204,754
AN T R A Equity attributable to the
R A1 4 i equity holders of
the Company 749,400 831,131 1,026,627  1,298.850 1,508,264
D BB AR £ Minority interests 28,146 30,688 34,865 43,572 47,255
AR 4R Total equity 777,546 861,819 1,061,492 1,342,422 1,555,519
SRITEK Bank loans
— R — AR R R — due after one year 140,636 123,500 = 351,300 316,000
HoAb REAT IR Other payable
— R — AR R R — due after one year 493 493 = = -
A — A B Loan from a related
AEIZ B company 102,595 68,620 = = -
R—HA B /A Rl ZIE  Amount due to a
— R — AR R R related company
— due after one year - - 17,490 18,364 9,407
IR AE R IH A i Deferred tax liabilities 7,955 19,613 27,721 90,561 106,390
L B=Kist Current liabilities 148,651 255,136 172,843 208,108 217,438
B EAAE Total liabilities 400,330 467,362 218,054 668,333 649,235
1,177,876 1,329,181 1,279,546 2,010,755 2,204,754
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Analysis of Properties Held
CIERRCEYE ki

MoEZENESNHAH=TH i AEGHEY Particulars of properties held for sale at 30 June 2008:
FEZFHEMT -

[RFi473 1]
fil e H 8 1 2 i B4 BRTREB AKEER BRI AN
Approximate
developed Expected
Approximate gross Stage of Group’s Date of
Location Type site area floor area completion interests completion
AR EERAH A 69,207F 77 B 95% A
o €
15 5 2R R 55,029 F IR
[ e ik N
RS
HMBE =M
(BBRAIR L) 2
KA G
Unsold portion of Residential N/A 69,207 sq.ft. Completed 95% N/A
Phase I — Chaoyang and apartment residential
Garden, Phase II - 55,029 sq. ft
The Sun Crest and apartment

Phase III — [nspiring Space
No. 25 Nan Lane
Ganlouyuan
Chaoyang District
Beijing
The Peoples’” Republic

of China
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Analysis of Properties Held (Continued)

UESREE/E Sioie 7

RoERNESNA=Z1TH > fea R

Particulars of properties held for development for sale at 30 June

E Fa I L INE 2008:
LES 3]
i iR Ho i R4 Wi B BRLRB  AEMEER  BABETAN
Approximate
developable Expected
Approximate gross Stage of Group’s date of
Location Type site area floor area completion interests completion
firf 3 AR I £~ WIH 1,849,105 F AW 2,523,082 F R B it 0 80% A
BORE YN YTiES Rakriy v EE A/
HE I 1L 1,291,680 FJ7R) 129,168°F /IR KRBT
FA G2 — R S
64,584 I
[LES
A site located in Residential, 1,849,105 sq.ft. 2,523,082 sq.ft. Temporary port 80% N/A
Tung Kok Tau hotel and (including residential operations/
Shekou, Nanshan commercial 1,291,680 sq.ft. 129,168 sq.ft. master plan
District, Shenzhen to be reclaimed) hotel rezoning
Guangdong Province 64,584 sq.ft.
The People’s Republic commercial
of China
N_FEE/NAFEANAZTH > ITREEREY Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2008:
FZREWT
i ik RLEEAE
Location Usage Lease term
2 N RILFE N 3
i
T AR [
RISt LR
SR IR S SR 55 Y
EHEE T T ORSR =)
Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14) Office Medium
West Tower, Eton Place
No. 69 Dongfang Road
Pudong New Area
Shanghai
The People’s Republic of China
SRR CEYges o
R
51 i H 5
[ a7
S S RS =R
&N STHE
Car parking spaces in Phase I, II, IIT Commercial/ Medium

and commercial portion of Phase III
No. 25 Nan Lane
Ganlouyuan
Chaoyang District
Beijing
The People’s Republic of China
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The Company is committed to establish and uphold good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise an effective Board, prudent
internal and risk control, transparency and accountability to its
shareholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, being the financial year
under review, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the
management of the Company have been continually reviewing and
enhancing the corporate governance practices of the Company with
reference to local and international standards. The Board believes
that its continued efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate
governance practices have contributed to the business growth of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Company has applied the
principles and adhered to the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company also adopted an internal corporate governance code
in line with the CG Code, which was approved by the Board in
2005 (the “Internal CG Code”). The Internal CG Code aims to
facilitate compliance with the CG Code and to give guidance to
members of the Board and the senior management of the Company
in this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and review
the Company’s corporate governance practices and procedures to
ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its practices
and procedures.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”). Each Director is specifically required to
confirm with the Company that he has complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code on a regular basis. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, there has not been any non-
compliance of the required standard set out in the Model Code by
any Directors in this respect.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises eight Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board members during
the year and at present are as follows:

Mr. CHUA Domingo
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
(appointed on 17 December 2007)
Mr. WONG Sai Tat
(appointed on 2 January 2008)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. SY Robin
Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

During the year, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan and Mr. WONG Sai
Tat were appointed as additions to the Board on 17 December 2007
and 2 January 2008 respectively as Executive Directors.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction of the Group, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of the senior
management, and ensuring good corporate governance. It also
monitors the financial performance and the internal controls of the
Group's business operations. Executive Directors are responsible
for running the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the
Board. The day-to-day operations of the Group is delegated to
the management with department heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions.

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance and risk management of
the Group through their contributions in Board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company is independent in character and judgment. The
Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board meets at least on a quarterly basis to discuss the business
development, operations and financial performance of the Group.
During the year, a total of five regular Board meetings were held.
Details of Directors' attendance record of such regular Board
meetings during the year are as follows:

Directors Attendance
Mr. CHUA Domingo 5/5
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 5/5
Mr. TANENGLIAN Mariano Chua 5/5
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 5/5
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 5/5
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 5/5
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 2/2
(appointed on 17 December 2007)
Mr. WONG Sai Tat 2/2
(appointed on 2 January 2008)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 5/5
Mr. SY Robin 5/5
Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol 5/5

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular
Board meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a
schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors have
access to Board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information which enable the Board to make an informed
decision on the matters to be discussed and considered at the Board
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Directors.

For qualifications, experience, expertise and relationships (if
any) of the Board members and between the chairman and chief
executive officer, please refer to the Profile of Management and
the section on Directors’ interests in competing business in the
Directors’ Report on pages 12 to 15 and pages 16 to 25 respectively
of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure
a balance of power and authority as set out in writing in the Internal
CG Code.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(Continued)

Mr. CHUA Domingo, the Chairman, is responsible for leading
the Board, the assignment of responsibilities among members of
the Board, and the proper conduct and proceedings of meetings
of the Board and shareholders of the Company, and overseeing
the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. In addition,
the Chairman also plays a key role in driving all Directors to
actively contribute to Board affairs and establishing good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, the CEO, is responsible for managing
the business and affairs of the Company; recommending and
implementing strategic, business and operational plans; directing
and monitoring the activities of the Company; developing and
implementing operational policies under the strategic directions
adopted by the Board; developing and recommending organisational
structure; managing shareholders and public relations and ensuring
that the Board has all the information it requires to fulfill its duties.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, the term of appointment of all Independent Non-
executive Directors are two years subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company’s bye-laws stipulate that every Director will be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In regard of remuneration policy of Directors, the Company has
established a Remuneration Committee with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements as set out in paragraph B.1.3 of the
CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and its
members during the year and at present are as follows:

M. CHUA Domingo

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. SY Robin

Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Of the five members of the Remuneration Committee, three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. No chairman has been
formally appointed for the Remuneration Committee. However, a
chairman will be appointed at the commencement of each meeting
of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing, determining and/or recommending to the Board as
to the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing the policy on such
remuneration, and to determine the specific remunerations packages
of all Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year, members of the Remuneration Committee,
pursuant to consent in writing by all members of the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with its terms of reference, ratified the
emoluments of the Directors of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2008.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Company does not have a nomination committee for
appointment of new Directors to the Board. The responsibilities of
identifying and selecting suitably qualified individuals to become
members of the Board are undertaken by the Board collectively.
Where the Board or a Director considers necessary or desirable
to appoint a new member to the Board (whether to fill a casual
vacancy or otherwise), each member of the Board may nominate
suitable individual(s) as candidate(s) of member(s) of the Board for
the decision of the Board.

In selecting a suitable candidate to become a member of the
Board, the Board will consider various criteria such as education,
qualification, experience, skills and possible contribution of
such candidate. A Board meeting was held on 30 November
2007 to consider and approve the appointment of Mr. CHIU Siu
Hung, Allan and Mr. WONG Sai Tat as the Executive Directors
as additions to the Board effective on 17 December 2007 and 2
January 2008 respectively, in which all Directors attended the said
Board meeting to approve such appointment. Mr. CHIU Siu Hung,
Allan and Mr. WONG Sai Tat will be subject to election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 19 December
2008.
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EE IR E )

®EZHT AUDIT COMMITTEE

RN B RO AL T B G IR A AT The Company has established an Audit Committee with terms of
BEVRTFHIEE C.3.3 BT HMELE - reference, which meet the requirements as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of the CG Code.

T B EHR — WILILERGT s A FEE The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and its members

A &% B i DA BB A during the year and at present are as follows:

HERIT e+ (B HATEE) Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth* (Independent Non-executive Director)

SY Robin &£ (B HATEE) Mr. SY Robin (Independent Non-executive Director)

SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol &&= (H7 FH 7 %) Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol (Independent Non-executive Director)

* WREAGER * Chairman of Audit Committee

WA B G EEA KPR The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following
duties:

1. ERAME RO ) BAT ~ T RAT KRR 1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
B 1) T S5 PR AL IR B G reappointment and removal of the external auditors;

2. IR A0 RE YR A B B S 5 A A T 2.  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
W) M L M S A BE - DA RO Y and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
HRE accordance with applicable standard;

3. B KBS AR AR N A B R TE A o8 R 3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the

RN AR LR R - 2RAE R Company and the Company’s annual report and accounts,
Mo 3 F B b BRI SR T A B half-year report and to review significant financial reporting
AR TR SR %) B R 5 % judgments contained in them; and

4. BEBRS AN S RE R R A N T 4. to oversee the Company's financial reporting system and
PEREF o procedures of internal control.

A% B8 0 B JF A 4R I AT A B None of the Audit Committee members is a former partner of the
MEMESEE A - existing auditors of the Group.

LT BT NS T I R R R During the year, two meetings have been held by the Audit
PR T B e TonE A (B A B A A T Y Committee for reviewing the independence and re-appointment of
W SLE R B TAT - AL E Y B R R the external auditors, the Company’s financial reporting system
BN EERET - AN ABE —FE and procedures of internal controls, the draft audited consolidated
LAESNH =+ H IEFE S E LGS M5 financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
RV fa M AL rl ke = ELETH 2007 and the draft unaudited consolidated financial statements
=+ —H Ik A R EEZ LA M IRIE of the Company for the six months ended 31 December 2007 for
¥H - DR THEF GRS submission to the Board for discussion and approval in accordance
with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of attendance record of members in the meetings of Audit
Committee during the year are as follows:

Members Attendance
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 2/2
Mr. SY Robin 2/2
Ms. SALAZAR Lourdes Apostol 2/2

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2008, audit and non-audit services
were provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
auditors of the Company, and the amounts of remuneration paid in

IR A B AT 8 5140 connection therewith are as follows:
/i%) e Services Amount
T T HKS$'000

BB Audit services
- CABHER - ARBZE_ZZLE +  Audit fees paid for final results for the year

ANH=ETHIEFERFEL R ended 30 June 2007 and provident funds

REBMAREES 854 of the Group 854
B M Non-audit services
. CAER - FREZ-ZELE +  Fees paid for reviewing of preliminary

AAZTHIFFERFEL AR announcement of final results and continuing

BRI 70 connected transactions for the year ended 30 June 2007 70
TS B e iR B W BT AN 4 ] T R Ak The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors’ independence
Al T A% BOUIR T AS & 5 B A% RO Y 4 ST was not affected by the provision of the abovementioned non-audit
P o services to the Group.
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The Board has not had any disagreement with the Audit Committee
on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal of its
external auditors.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure that
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are on a
going concern basis in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Auditors’ statement of reporting responsibilities is set out in the
independent auditors’ report on pages 26 to 27 to this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for ensuring clear and
understandable assessment in annual/interim reports, price-sensitive
announcement and other financial disclosures/reports under
regulatory requirements. In addition, the Audit Committee has been
established to monitor the integrity of financial statements of the
Company.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year, the Board has conducted and completed an internal
review in respect of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control with the objectives of ensuring:

. high level management controls are adequately defined;

. operational controls are in place, sufficient and effective;

. income is properly received, recorded and supported;

. expenses are of proper nature and are properly approved; and
. assets are properly safeguarded.

Such reviews cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions. No material control failure or significant areas of
concern which might affect the shareholders’ interests were
identified during the review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company is committed to ensure shareholders’ interest. To
this end, the Company communicates with its shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special
general meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings,
circulars sent to shareholders of the Company, announcements,
press releases and other corporate communications available on the
Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS (Continued)

The Chairmen of the Board and Board committees attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 December 2007
to answer questions raised by the shareholders of the Company
thereat. In respect of the year ended 30 June 2008, an annual
general meeting of the Company will be held on 19 December
2008, at which the Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the
Board and Board committees to attend and answer questions raised
by the shareholders of the Company thereat.

The Company regards communication with its shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of the
Group and regularly collects views and feedbacks from them.

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or
proposals to the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: http://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com
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